
  

 

Meeting of the  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
__________________________________ 

 
Monday, 14 January 2013 at 7.00 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

A G E N D A 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, 
E14 2BG 

 

Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair: Councillor Carlo Gibbs  
Vice Chair: Councillor Anwar Khan  
  
  
Councillor Craig Aston 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor David Edgar 
Councillor Abdal Ullah 
1 Vacancy 
 

Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Craig 
Aston) 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Carlo 
Gibbs, David Edgar, Anwar Khan and 
Abdal Ullah) 
Councillor Marc Francis, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Carlo 
Gibbs, David Edgar, Anwar Khan and 
Abdal Ullah,) 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Carlo Gibbs, David Edgar, 
Anwar Khan and Abdal Ullah) 
 

 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 

 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4881, E-mail: antonella.burgio@towerhamlets.gov.uk  



 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

Monday, 14 January 2013 

 
7.00 p.m. 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 
Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  3 - 10  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Audit 
Committee held on 25 September 2012. 
 

  

4. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION 
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

  

4 .1 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report 
LBTH Audit 2011/12   

11 - 18  

 To note the report of Auditors KPMG   

5. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS REPORTS 
FOR CONSIDERATION  

  

5 .1 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report   19 - 46  

 To note the report and to take account of the assurance 
opinion assigned to the systems reviewed during the 
period.  
 

  

5 .2 Revised Internal Audit Plan for 2012   47 - 92  

 To endorse the revised 2012/13 internal audit plan. 
 

  



 

5 .3 Annual Risk Management Report   93 - 104  

 To note the report.   

5 .4 Annual Internal Audit Report for Schools 2011/12   105 - 116  

 To note the contents of the report and to take account of 
the matters raised by Audit in each of the 12 areas 
examined. 

  

5 .5 Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12 - Update   117 - 120  

 To note the report.   

5 .6 2011/12 Treasury Management Report to 30 November 
2012.   

121 - 132  

 To note the report.   

6. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

  

 
 



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\5\AI00038545\$qwwpaxgv.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\4\5\AI00038545\$qwwpaxgv.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 25 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 

MEETING ROOM C1, FIRST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Carlo Gibbs (Chair)  
  
Councillor Craig Aston  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton  
Councillor David Edgar  
  
Officers Present: 
 
Alan Finch – (Service Head Financial Services, Risk & 

Accountability, Resources) 
Tony Qayum – (Corporate Fraud Manager, Internal Audit, 

Resources) 
Minesh Jani – (Head of Audit and Risk Management, 

Resources) 
Shona Milton – (Audit Manager, Audit Commission) 
Kevin Miles – (Chief Accountant,  Resources) 
Bharat Mehta – (Audit Manager) 
Jill Bell – Head of Legal Services (Environment), Legal 

Services 
Chris Holme – (Service Head, Resources) 
Alan Bryce – (Audit Commission) 
Steve Vinall – (Deloitte Touche) 
Jon Hayes – (Audit Commission) 
Antonella Burgio – (Democratic Services) 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Abdal Ullah. 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Anwar Khan. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY  INTEREST  
 
No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest were made. 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2012 were approved 
as a correct record of proceedings. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
4. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  

 
 

4.1 Fraud Briefing from Protecting the Public Purse  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Alan Bryce of the Audit 
Commission concerned with national and local measures in detecting and 
monitoring areas of fraud which affect councils and related bodies.  The 
presentation supplemented the fraud briefing circulated at agenda item 4.1 
which reported the Council’s performance on tackling fraud in comparison to 
its neighbouring and peer authorities in 2012 and provided a cumulative trend 
analysis over three years since the initiative had been established. 
 
Members noted the matters advised in regard to growing areas of fraud 
detection such as housing tenancy, single person discount, (social care) 
personalised budget and procurement frauds.   
 
Members were advised that in since January 2012, the Council has worked to 
establish relationships with registered social landlords to identify what housing 
tenancy fraud issues exist. 
 
Members were advised that in 2010-11, the Council reported no single person 
discount fraud.  This then was investigated and data found.  Mr Bryce 
therefore recommended that this data be reported by the Council. 
 
Members noted the commendation of the Council's approach to dealing with 
personalised budget fraud and Mr Bryce advised that the Audit Commission 
had brokered the sharing of this good practice, with other authorities which 
had expressed an interest, with the agreement of the departments involved. 
 
Members noted the matter of a contractor timesheet fraud raised at Council 
and were advised that the Fraud manager would investigate the referral and 
report back to Council.  The Committee was advised that contractor 
timesheets were monitored and authorised through the departmental 
management structures. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1 That the presentation be noted 
2 That the contents of the report be noted 
3 That single person discount fraud data be reported in future 
4 That the referral by Council to the Head of Paid Service and Fraud 

Manager concerning a contractor timesheet fraud be noted 
 
 

5. UNRESTRICTED AUDIT COMMISSION REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

5.1 Annual Governance Report - Council Accounts 2011-2012  
 

Page 4



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Mr Jon Hayes of the Audit Commission presented the report circulated at 
agenda item 5.1. He advised that the annual governance report - audit 2011 - 
12 was delivered in accordance with statutory deadline and reported that, in 
the main, the outcome of the annual audit had been satisfactory. 
 
Mr Hayes noted the following areas of the report:  
Page 5 - audit “uncertainties in the financial statement”,  
Page 6 - significant risks and findings,  
Page 7 - table of areas to be focused on during the annual audit,  
Page 9 - Weakness in internal control - page 9 
Pages - 10 & 11 - matters significant for oversight of the council's financial 
reporting process and data cleansing, 
Page 13 - value for money arrangements were satisfactory, 
Appendix1 - draft independent auditor’s report 
Appendix 5 - action plan & recommendations arising from the audit  
 
Mr Hayes advised that, following changes in regulations, the annual audit 
henceforth was to be undertaken by KPMG. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the following information was 
provided: 
 
Concerning “uncertainties in the financial statement”, the Service Head 
Financial Services, Risk & Accountability agreed that appropriate control 
processes needed to be put in place and acknowledged that there was 
opportunity to do this.  However it would be necessary to ensure that enough 
time was given for quality assurance before the accounts were published. 
 
Concerning the un-reconciled difference discovered during an audit of sample 
cash account reconciliations, Mr Hayes noted that an anomaly of this kind 
could arise where an item in a closed account has not been fully written off.  
To avoid this, he recommended that regular maintenance of accounts should 
take place. 
 
Concerning the submission of whole of government accounts within the 
statutory deadlines, Mr Hayes noted that the submission would be ready by 
the statutory deadline of 5 October 2012.  To meet deadlines for the 
forthcoming year he suggested that the Committee consider a meeting one or 
two weeks earlier in order to meet the deadline 
 
Noting that future audits would be undertaken by private companies, 
Members sought assurance that there was comparative data on the work 
required to produce audited accounts to ensure that auditors’ fees would not 
escalate unreasonably.  Mr Hayes advised that fees would be fixed for the 
next five years. Any variation would need to be agreed by the Audit 
Commission therefore councils were protected. 
 
Mr Hayes advised the Committee arising from the changes in regulations, he 
would no longer undertake audits but would continue at the Audit Commission 
in a different capacity. 
 

Page 5



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

The Chair noted Mr Hayes departure to take up a new role and thanked him 
for his audit work on behalf of the Council over the past five years. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the draft audit to be approved 
 
 
 

5.2 Annual Governance Report - Pension Fund Accounts  
 
Mr Hayes presented the report noting the following: 
 
Appendix 2 - corrected errors reported at Appendix 2. 
Page 6 - risks and findings highlighted had not originated from his audit 
 
He reported that overall, the audit of the pension fund had been satisfactory 
and the Annual Pensions Accounts would be signed off at the forthcoming 
Pensions Committee meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the audit report be noted. 
 
 
 

6. UNRESTRICTED TOWER HAMLETS REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

6.1 Annual Financial Report 2011/12  
 
 
The statement of accounts for the financial year end 31 March 2012 and 
accompanying report was presented by Alan Finch Service Head Financial 
Services, Risk & Accountability.  He advised the Committee that the accounts 
also incorporated amendments made in the auditor’s annual report and 
highlighted Cabinet's decision, on 20 June 2012, to allocate £950,000 to 
mainstream grant funding. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the following information was 
provided: 
 
Concerning the deficit beyond the medium-term financial strategy, this had 
been noted and further savings would be sought.  This was outside of the 
Council's present medium-term financial plan and has been identified as a 
future risk.  It was noted that the figures were not yet fully known. 
 
Concerning arrangements for the oversight of the governance structure of 
Tower Hamlets Homes, the Committee was advised that a written response 
would be provided by Chris Holme, Service Head Resources. Additionally 
Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk, would undertake an audit of Tower 

Page 6



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

Hamlets Homes governance in December 2012.  A report will be presented to 
the Committee subsequently. 
 
Concerning whether equalities issues were being properly considered in the 
data, the Service Head Financial Services, Risk & Accountability advised that 
the Auditor had confirmed that the Council’s accounts gave a true and fair 
view of the way that monies have been used. 
 
Concerning the decision required on officers’ remuneration, the Service Head 
Financial Services, Risk & Accountability recommended that this matter be 
taken up with the Head of Paid Service. 
 
The Committee noted that there had been significant changes in some 
funding streams and requested an explanation.  The Chief Accountant 
advised that a detailed answer would be required and agreed to reply in 
writing. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1 That the statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 

2012 be approved, having regard to the Auditor’s annual governance 
report. 

2 That it be agreed that, if the auditor identifies any further significant 
issues, the Chair of the Committee be delegated to approve any 
subsequent amendments to the statement of accounts that may be 
necessary or as a result further audit work, and that the Chief Finance 
Officer will brief the Committee, and if necessary prepare a formal 
report to the next meeting of the Committee. 

 
 
 

6.2 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report  
 
Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk, presented to the report circulated 
agenda item 6.2.  The Committee was asked to note  

• the indicators examined by means of the audit and the resulting 
reconciliation 

• recommendations yet to be implemented applied only to one area.  
Where recommendations remained to be completed the Head of Audit 
and Risk advised that these would take up with the relevant corporate 
director 

• the overall level of assurance provided, detailed in paragraphs 5.3 to 
5.5.  

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the following information was 
provided: 
 
Further to the findings of the parking appeals systems audit at appendix 2 of 
the report, Members were advised that removal of the clamping organisation 
had not been part of the audit, however the contract management element of 
this service area had been examined. 

Page 7



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

 
Concerning the scope of the audit relating to the management of community 
buildings listed at appendix 1, Members were advised that this had involved 
inspection of systems of control beyond finance concerned with contractual 
arrangements were in place for the assignments of the buildings. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted, taking into account the assurance opinion assigned 
to the systems reviewed during the period.  
 
 
 

6.3 Annual Anti -Fraud Report 2011/12  
 
Tony Qayum, Corporate Fraud Manager, presented to the report circulated at 
agenda item 6.3 noting that, in the last 12 months, all anti-fraud functions had 
been managed by the Risk Management Section. The Corporate Fraud 
Manager noted the following highlights in the period; joint working, money-
laundering investigations, and a citation for good practice regarding training 
that had been delivered.  He also advised that future reports would include 
data on property abandonment. 
 
In response to Members’ questions, the following information was provided: 
 
Concerning whether there had been under reporting of corporate frauds and 
whether this area was under resourced, Members were advised that the areas 
mostly reported were those that had been agreed as priority areas.  However 
the Anti-fraud Team was looking to reallocate resources to enable corporate 
matters to be better investigated. 
 
Concerning achieving better data matching, Members requested that other 
bodies be encouraged to participate in data matching exercises on a voluntary 
basis by liaising with Councillors who are boards members of registered social 
housing organisations. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted 
 
 
 

6.4 Social Housing Fraud Update  
 
Tony Qayum, Corporate Fraud Manager presented the report circulated at 
agenda item 6.4.  The Committee was asked to note that the Audit 
Commission was considering two initiatives to address fraud via unlawful 
tenancies.  Additionally there was cross agency working on fraud cases which 
were connected to bigger areas of criminality. 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 8



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

 
That the report be noted 
 
 
 

6.5 Progress on National Fraud Initiative 2010-11, and launch of NFI 2012-13  
 
The report was presented for information, to advise members of work 
connected with the initiative to be launched and of reporting frameworks. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted 
 
 
 

6.6 2011-12 Treasury Management Outturn Report  
 
Alan Finch Service Head Financial Services, Risk & Accountability presented 
the report circulated at agenda item 6.6 which advised the Committee of 
treasury management activity for the financial year ending at 31 March 2012, 
prior to its presentation at full Council.  The Committee was asked to note: 

• the Prudential Indicators for the period 

• that in last year the Council had remained within these parameters 

• the investment out turn at paragraph 11 of the report, and in particular 
the rate of return achieved which was 1.52%. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted 
 
 
 

6.7 Treasury Management Activity for Period Ending 31 August 2012  
 
Alan Finch Service Head Financial Services, Risk & Accountability presented 
the report circulated agenda item 6.7.  He reported that investment returns 
were slightly reduced for the period; this reflected the general trend in 
investments. He advised that the Council would explore investment in 
relatively risk-free areas but asked the Committee to note that areas of better 
return were generally of higher risk.  Therefore it would be necessary to 
balance risk exposure against the potential for greater returns. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1 That the contents of the treasury management activity report for the 

period ending 31 August 2012 be noted and 
2 That amendments to the investment strategy as attached appendix 3 

be referred to Council  
 
 

Page 9



AUDIT COMMITTEE, 25/09/2012 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.00 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Carlo Gibbs 
Audit Committee 

 

Page 10



C
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

L
o

n
d

o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 
T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

  
  

  
  

  

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 11



1
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 (
‘K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l’)
, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

C
o

n
te

n
ts

T
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c

ts
 a

t 
K

P
M

G
 

in
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

:

A
n

d
y
 S

a
y
e

rs

P
a

rt
n

e
r

T
e

l:
0

2
0

 7
3

1
1

 6
4

9
6

a
n
d
re

w
.s

a
y
e
rs

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
,u

k

S
h

o
n

a
 M

il
to

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
e

l:
0

2
0

 7
3

1
1

 2
0

7
7

s
h
o
n
a
.m

ilt
o
n
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

E
m

m
a

 L
a

rc
o

m
b

e

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
e

l:
0

2
0

 7
3

1
1

 3
3

5
5

e
m

m
a
.l
a
rc

o
m

b
e
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k

P
a
g

e

!
H

e
a
d
lin

e
s

2

!
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

3

!
F

e
e
s

5

!
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

6

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

o
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
W

e
 t
a
k
e
 n

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

n
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
ie

s
, 
o
r 

to
 t

h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s

o
f

A
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
e
d
 B

o
d
ie

s
. 

T
h
is

 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 b
e
g
in

 a
n
d
 e

n
d
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 b

o
d
y
. 

W
e
 d

ra
w

 y
o
u
r 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

a
c
t 
a
s
 a

 s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 b

o
d
y
’s

 o
w

n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

p
u
tt

in
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
u
b
lic

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
s
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 p

ro
p
e
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
u
b
lic

 m
o
n
e
y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r,

 a
n
d

u
s
e
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

r 
a
re

 d
is

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
 y

o
u
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
A

n
d
y
 S

a
y
e
rs

,
w

h
o
 i
s
 t
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

le
a
d
e
r 

to
 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
 0

2
0
  

7
3
1
1
  

6
4
9
6
, 

e
-m

a
il 

a
n
d
re

w
.s

a
y
e
rs

@
k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k
 w

h
o
 w

ill
 t
ry

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 y

o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
t.

 I
f 
y
o
u
 a

re
 d

is
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

p
le

a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
T

re
v
o
r 

R
e
e
s
 (

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
 0

1
6
1
 2

3
6
 4

0
0
0
, 

e
-m

a
il 

tr
e
v
o
r.

re
e
s
@

k
p
m

g
.c

o
.u

k
) 

w
h
o
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll 

o
f 

K
P

M
G

’s
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
A

ft
e
r 

th
is

, 
if
 y

o
u
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

d
is

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 h

o
w

 y
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

a
n
d
le

d
 y

o
u
 c

a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

. 
P

u
t 

y
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
in

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 U
n
it
, 
W

e
s
tw

a
rd

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

L
im

e
 K

iln
 C

lo
s
e
, 
S

to
k
e
 G

if
fo

rd
, 
B

ri
s
to

l,
 B

S
3
4
 8

S
R

 o
r 

b
y
 e

 m
a
il

to
: 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

@
a
u
d
it
-

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
. 
T

h
e
ir
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

is
 0

8
4
4
 7

9
8
 3

1
3
1
, 

te
x
tp

h
o
n
e
 (

m
in

ic
o
m

) 
0
2
0
 7

6
3
0
 0

4
2
1
.

Page 12



2
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 (
‘K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l’)
, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 2

0
1
1

/1
2

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
s

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

b
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d

T
h

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 g

ra
n

t 
c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 w

a
s

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 y

o
u

r 
p

re
v
io

u
s

 a
u

d
it

o
r,

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 A
u

d
it

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 .
 T

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 r

e
s

u
lt

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 g

ra
n

t 
c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
.

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

. 

F
o

r 
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 y

o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
c
e

rt
if
ie

d
:

–
tw

o
g

ra
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
 t
o

ta
l 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 
£

2
8

5
,5

7
6

 m
ill

io
n

; 
a

n
d

–
fo

u
r

re
tu

rn
s
 w

it
h

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

£
3

4
1

,4
5

3
 m

ill
io

n
.

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s

u
lt

s
U

n
q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 c
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
s

 w
e

re
 i
s

s
u

e
d

 f
o

r 
4

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s

 b
u

t 
q

u
a

li
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 w
e

re
 n

e
c

e
s

s
a

ry
 i

n
 t

w
o

 c
a

s
e

s
. 

!
T

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
S

u
b

s
id

y
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

a
s
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 e
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 in

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

u
n

d
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 le

tt
e

r 
a

ls
o

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
id

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

c
la

im
. 
T

h
is

 m
a

tt
e

r 
re

la
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 s
in

g
le

 p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 d
is

c
o

u
n

t 
in

 a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

d
o

n
e

. 

!
T

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

u
b

s
id

y
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

a
s
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l e

rr
o

r.
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

th
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

P
a

g
e

s
 3

 –
4

A
u

d
it

 a
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 n

e
c

e
s

s
a

ry
 t

o
 f

o
u

r
o

f
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s

 a
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

!
T

h
e

  
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
re

tu
rn

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
y
 £

8
2

6
k
. 
W

h
ils

t

th
is

 is
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 s
u

m
, 
it
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 o
n

ly
 0

.3
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 
th

e
 c

la
im

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 £

2
8

4
 m

ill
io

n
. 

!
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

in
g

le
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 t
h

a
t 
it
 h

a
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 £

1
,0

8
3

k
o

f

in
c
o

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 1

0
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 d
u

e
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

P
a

g
e

s
 3

 –
4

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 h

a
s

 s
o

u
n

d
 o

v
e

ra
ll

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 i
ts

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

u
r 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 b
u

t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s

.

!
O

v
e

ra
ll 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 g
ra

n
t 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 a

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 t
h

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

rg
e

r 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 f
e

w
e

r 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 le

tt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 l
e

s
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
s
m

a
lle

r 
g

ra
n

ts
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 G

L
A

 S
in

g
le

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s

s
c
o

p
e

fo
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

P
a

g
e

 5
 –

6

F
e

e
s

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 f
e

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 w

a
s

 £
6

9
,2

0
6

k
.

!
T

h
e

 f
e

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 £

3
6

,8
4

9
k
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
la

rg
e

r 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
la

im
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
. 

P
a

g
e

 5

Page 13



3
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 (
‘K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l’)
, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

o
v
e

rl
e

a
f

Q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

te

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t

a
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
t

M
in

o
r

a
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
t 

U
n

q
u

a
li

fi
e

d

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

te

G
L

A
 S

in
g

le
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
H

ig
h

 

S
tr

e
e

t 
2

0
1

2
)

 
 

 
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

o
n

-D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 R

a
te

s
 

P
o

o
li

n
g

 R
e

tu
rn

 
 

 
 

P
o

o
li

n
g

 o
f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 
 

 

T
e

a
c

h
e

rs
’ 
P

e
n

s
io

n
s

 R
e

tu
rn

 
 

 
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

  
F

in
a

n
c

e
 S

u
b

s
id

y
 R

e
tu

rn
 

 
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

C
la

im

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 b

e
lo

w
 i
s
 a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
, 
s
h

o
w

in
g

w
h

e
re

 e
it
h

e
r 

a
u

d
it
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 m

a
d

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
r 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
h

a
d

 t
o

 q
u

a
lif

y
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

. 

A
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
is

s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
 s

c
h

e
m

e
’s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
c
o

u
ld

n
o

t 
b

e
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t.
  
In

 t
h

e
s
e

 c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s
, 
it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
g

ra
n

t 
p

a
y
in

g
 b

o
d

y
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 

s
a

ti
s
fy

 it
s
e

lf
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
u

ll 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
g

ra
n

t 
c
la

im
e

d
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
.

O
v
e

ra
ll

, 
w

e
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 s

ix
 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s

:

!
o

n
e

w
a

s
 u

n
q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 w
it

h
 

n
o

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t;

!
th

re
e

w
e

re
 u

n
q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 

b
u

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 

fi
g

u
re

s
; 

a
n

d

!
tw

o
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

 

q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
.

D
e

ta
il

e
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
v
e

rl
e

a
f.

1 2 3

Page 14



4
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 (
‘K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l’)
, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

T
h

is
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 

k
e

y
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 b

e
h

in
d

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 a
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 o
r 

q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s

 

p
a

g
e

.

R
e

f
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

b
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

s
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t

!
 

G
L

A
 S

in
g

le
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
2

0
1

2
)

T
h

e
 G

L
A

 s
in

g
le

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 g

ra
n

t 
re

tu
rn

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 £

1
,0

8
3

k
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

a
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
u

t 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 c
la

im
 w

a
s
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 
th

e
 e

rr
o

r 
b

e
fo

re
 i
t 

w
a

s
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 b

u
t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
th

is
 c

la
im

. 

In
c

o
m

e
 

p
a

y
a

b
le

 

in
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

b
y
 £

1
,0

8
3

k

"
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 S
u

b
s

id
y
 R

e
tu

rn

T
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 S
u

b
s
id

y
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

a
s
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
  
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l m

a
tt

e
r 

th
a

t 
it
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 in

 t
h

e
 c

la
im

. 
T

h
e

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 le

d
 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

L
G

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 

th
is

 d
id

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

N
/a

#
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

C
la

im

T
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
S

u
b

s
id

y
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

a
s
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 e
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 in

 u
n

d
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 
re

c
ip

ie
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 l
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

  
w

a
s
 n

o
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 in

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 e

rr
o

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

o
rk

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

la
im

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
s
o

ft
w

a
re

 u
p

d
a

te
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 

s
u

p
p

lie
r.

 T
h

e
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

la
im

 b
y
 £

8
2

6
k
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 0
.3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 c

la
im

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 d

id
 n

o
t 
ra

is
e

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
o

ft
w

a
re

 

u
p

d
a

te
s
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
, 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 c
la

im
s
 w

e
re

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 d
u

e
 
to

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 s
in

g
le

 p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 d
is

c
o

u
n

t 
in

 

a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 d
o

n
e

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 c

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

o
f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

e
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r’
s
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 le

tt
e

r.
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

 s
h

o
u

ld
  
n

o
w

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

a
n

d
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
. 

S
u

b
s

id
y
 

p
a

y
a

b
le

 t
o

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 

re
d

u
c

e
d

 b
y
 

£
8

2
6

k

Page 15



5
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 (
‘K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l’)
, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

B
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

 o
f 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

e
e

s
 2

0
1

1
/1

2

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 2

0
1
1

/1
2

F
e
e
s

T
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f
e

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
e

rt
if
y
in

g
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 w

a
s
 £

9
6

,0
0

0
. 
 T

h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l f

e
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
a

s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f
e

e
. 
 T

h
e

 

m
a

in
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
e

e
 b

e
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

 w
e

re
: 

$
th

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
it
s
 l
a

rg
e

r 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
; 
a

n
d

$
a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
la

im
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
.

O
u

r 
o

v
e

ra
ll

 f
e

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

re
tu

rn
s

 w
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
e

s
ti

m
a

te
.

B
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

 o
f 

fe
e

 b
y
 g

ra
n

t/
re

tu
rn

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 (
£

)
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 (

£
)

1
. 
G

L
A

 S
in

g
le

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

2
0

1
2

)
4

,2
9

6
3

,3
1

7

2
. 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
N

o
n

-D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 

P
o

o
lin

g
 R

e
tu

rn
6

,3
5

0
1

0
,0

3
8

3
. 
P

o
o

lin
g

 o
f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

1
,5

1
5

5
,4

3
9

4
. 
T

e
a

c
h

e
rs

’ 
P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 R

e
tu

rn
1

,1
8

9
1

,3
2

9

5
. 
H

o
u

s
in

g
  
F

in
a

n
c
e

 S
u

b
s
id

y
 R

e
tu

rn
3

,7
5

9
2

,0
9

2

6
. 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 
R

e
tu

rn
4

8
,9

7
7

5
4

,8
0

8

C
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 in

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

b
u

t 
n

o
t 
in

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

-
2

3
,9

5
7

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

3
,1

2
0

5
,0

7
5

T
o

ta
l 
fe

e
6

9
,2

0
6

1
0

6
,0

5
5

G
ra

n
t 
1
, 
£
4
,2

9
6

G
ra

n
t 
2
, 
£
6
,3

5
0

G
ra

n
t 
3
, 
£
1
,5

1
5

G
ra

n
t 
4
, 
£
1
,1

8
9

G
ra

n
t 
5
, 
£
3
,7

5
9

G
ra

n
t 
6
, 
£
4
8
,9

7
7

Page 16



6
©

 2
0

1
2

 K
P

M
G

 L
L

P
, 

a
 U

K
 l
im

it
e

d
 l
ia

b
il
it
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 E

u
ro

p
e

 L
L

P
 a

n
d

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

o
f

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
fi
rm

s
 a

ff
il
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 

K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 (
‘K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l’)
, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

d
.

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 e
a

c
h

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

 r
is

k
 r

a
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 
fo

ll
o

w
 u

p
 t

h
e

s
e

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r’

s
 

a
u

d
it

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 r

a
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

!
Is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 f
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l a

n
d

 m
a

te
ri

a
l t

o
 y

o
u

r 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 is
s
u

e
s
 m

ig
h

t 
m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e

t 
a

 g
ra

n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 r
is

k
.

"
Is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
e

ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 y

o
u

r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 o

r 

c
o

m
p

ly
in

g
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
, 
b

u
t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
n

e
e

d
 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
c
ti
o

n
. 
 Y

o
u

 m
a

y
 s

ti
ll 

m
e

e
t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 in

 f
u

ll 
o

r 
in

 p
a

rt
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
te

) 
a

 r
is

k
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
ly

 b
u

t 
th

e
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 in

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
.

#
Is

s
u

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
, 

if
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 y
o

u
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 in

 g
e

n
e

ra
l,
 b

u
t 

a
re

 n
o

t 
v
it
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
is

s
u

e
s
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 f

e
e

l 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
y
o

u
 i
f 

y
o

u
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
m

.

Is
s

u
e

Im
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
P

ri
o

ri
ty

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

 

S
u

b
s

id
y
 R

e
tu

rn
–

S
in

g
le

 P
e

rs
o

n
’s

 D
is

c
o

u
n

t

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

o
rk

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 C

L
G

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 

y
e

a
r 

c
la

im
s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
in

g
le

 

p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 d
is

c
o

u
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 r

e
tu

rn
. 
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
m

a
y
 

a
d

ju
s
t 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r’
s
 

s
u

b
s
id

y
 c

la
im

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
e

tr
im

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

1
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
c
a

s
e

s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 s

in
g

le
 

p
e

rs
o

n
s
’ d

is
c
o

u
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
lie

d
. 
M

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
.

!

W
o
rk

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t/

 S
P

D
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
e

s
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 

S
te

v
e

 H
ill

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

O
v
e

ra
ll

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
tr

o
l e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
s
m

a
lle

r 
g

ra
n

t 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 in

 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

w
a

rd
in

g
 b

o
d

y
’s

 t
e

rm
s
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 l
o

s
e

 

g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 d
u

e
 t
o

 

la
te

 o
r 

in
e

lig
ib

le
 c

la
im

s
.

2
S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
s
m

a
lle

r 
g

ra
n

t 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 

!

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 g

ra
n

t 

c
la

im
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
m

in
d

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 

th
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
c
h

e
c
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 c

la
im

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
p

a
y
in

g
 

b
o

d
y
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

c
h

e
c
k
in

g
 w

h
a

t 
g

ra
n

t 
c
a

s
h

 

s
u

m
s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

K
e

v
in

 M
ile

s
, 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

Page 17



©
 2

0
1

1
 K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

, 
a

 U
K

 l
im

it
e

d
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
is

 a
 s

u
b

s
id

ia
ry

 o
f 
K

P
M

G
 

E
u

ro
p

e
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

fi
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

fi
rm

s
 a

ff
ili

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

, 
a

 S
w

is
s
 e

n
ti
ty

. 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 

re
s
e

rv
e

d
.

T
h

e
 K

P
M

G
 n

a
m

e
, 
lo

g
o

 a
n

d
 ‘
c
u

tt
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x
it
y
’ 
a

re
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 

tr
a

d
e

m
a

rk
s
 o

r 
tr

a
d

e
m

a
rk

s
 o

f 
K

P
M

G
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l C
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

 (
K

P
M

G
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l)
.

Page 18



 

  

REPORT TO: 

 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

 
14th January 2013 

CLASSIFICATION 

 
Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 
REPORT OF: 

 

Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Risk Management and Audit 
 

 

Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance 
Report 
 
Ward(s) Affected:  
 
N/A 
 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises the work of Internal Audit for the period September 

2012 to November 2012. 
 

1.2. The report sets out the assurance rating of each audit finalised in the period 
and gives an overall assurance rating. The quarterly assurance report feeds 
into the annual internal audit opinion which will be produced at the end of the 
financial year.    

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to take 

account of the assurance opinion assigned to the systems reviewed during the 
period.  

 
 

 
 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

List of "Background Papers" used in the preparation of this report 
 

Brief description of "background papers"  Contact : 
 

N/A 

  

  

Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 19



 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1. From April 2005, we have assigned each review one of four ratings, depending 

upon the level of our findings. The ratings we use are: - 
 

Assurance Definition  

Full 
There is a sound system of control designed to achieve 
the system objectives, and the controls are being 
consistently applied; 

Substantial 

While there is a basically sound system there are 
weaknesses which put some of the control objectives at 
risk or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance 
with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk; 

Limited 
Weakness in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk or the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk; 

Nil 

Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 
significant error or abuse, or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or 
abuse. 

 
 
3.2. In addition, each review is also considered in terms of its significance to the 

authority in line with the previously agreed methodology. The significance of 
each auditable area is assigned, based on the following factors: -  

 

Significance Definition 

Extensive 
High Risk, High Impact area including Fundamental 
Financial Systems, Major Service activity, Scale of 
Service in excess of £5m.   

Moderate 
Medium impact, key systems and / or Scale of Service 
£1m- £5m. 

Low Low impact service area, Scale of Service below £1m.   

 
 
4. Overall Audit Opinion  
 
4.1. Overall, based on work performed in the year to date, I am able to give a 

substantial level of assurance over the systems and controls in place within the 
authority.  

 

Page 20



 

 
5. Overview of finalised audits  
 
5.1. Since the last Assurance Report that was presented to the Audit Committee in 

September 2012, fifteen final reports have been issued. The findings of  these 
audits are presented as follows: 

Ø  The chart below summarises the assurance rating assigned by the level of 
significance of each report.  

Ø  Appendix 1 provides a list of the audits organised by assurance rating and 
significance. 

Ø  Appendix 2 provides a brief summary of each audit.  
 
5.2. Members are invited to consider the following: 

Ø  The overall level of assurance provided (para 5.3-5.5).  

Ø  The findings of individual reports.  The Audit Committee may wish to focus 
on those with a higher level of significance and those assigned Nil or 
Limited assurance. These are clearly set out in Appendix 1.  

 
5.3. The chart ranks the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in 

place. This assurance rating will feed into Internal Audit’s overall assessment 
of the adequacy of governance arrangements that is required as part of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006. 

 
(Please refer to the table below). 
 

Chart 1 Analysis of Assurance Levels 
 

Assurance 
SUMMARY 

Full Substantial Limited Nil Total 

 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

 
- 

5 1 - 6 

 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
  

 
- 7 2 - 9 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 

 

 

L
o
w

 

- - - - - 

Total Numbers - 12 3 - 15 

Page 21



 

Total % - 80% 20% - 100% 

 
5.4. From the chart it can be seen that of the six finalised audits which focused on 

high risk or high value areas; five were assigned Substantial Assurance and 
one was assigned Limited assurance.  A further nine audits were of moderate 
significance and of these; seven were assigned Substantial Assurance and 
two, Limited Assurance.  

 
5.5. Overall, 80% of audits resulted in an adequate assurance (substantial or full). 

The remaining 20% of audits have an inadequate assurance rating (limited or 
nil).   

 
 
6. Performance Indicators 
 
6.1. At the start of the year, three performance indicators were formulated to 

monitor the delivery of the Internal Audit service as part of the Chief 
Executive’s Monitoring process. The table below shows the actual and targets 
for each indicator for the period: 

 

Performance measure 
 

Target Actual 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed up 
to October 2012 

47% 57% 

Percentage of Priority 1 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage  

100% 
100% 

2 out of 2 

Percentage of Priority 2 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage 

95% 
83% 

15 out of 18 

 
The table above shows that the proportion of internal audit work completed to 
October 2012 is 57% against the target of 47%.  This is principally due to most 
of the schools being audited in the first two quarters of the financial year which 
has meant that the audit plan is ahead of the target.   

 
6.2. The percentage of priority 1 recommendations implemented at the follow up 

stage was 100%, whereas the percentage of priority 2 recommendations was 
83%.  Relevant Corporate Directors were sent copies of the final Follow Up 
audit reports.  Details of all priority 2 recommendations not implemented are 
set out in Appendix 3.  Further to the usual actions, meetings are being 
convened with key officers to seek assurances that agreed recommendations 
will be implemented promptly.  

Page 22



 

 
7. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

7.1. These are contained within the body of this report. 
 
 
8. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
8.1 The Council is required to ensure that it has a sound system of internal control 

that facilitates effective exercise of the Council’s functions and includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. The Council is also required to 
maintain an effective system of internal audit of its system of internal control in 
accordance with proper practices. One of the functions of the Audit Committee 
under the Council’s Constitution is to review internal audit findings. The 
consideration by the Audit Committee of this report is consistent with the 
Council’s obligations and is within the Committee’s functions. 

 
 
9. One Tower Hamlets 
 
9.1. There are no specific one Tower Hamlets considerations. 

 
9.2. There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
 
10. Risk Management Implications 
 
10.1. This report highlights risks arising from weaknesses in controls that may 

expose the Council to unnecessary risk. The risks highlighted in this report 
require management responsible for the systems of control to take steps so 
that effective governance can be put in place to manage the authority’s 
exposure to risk. 

 
 
11. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
11.1. There are no specific SAGE implications. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

c
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 
A

u
d

it
 t

it
le

 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

 
 

 

 
E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 –
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

S
t 

A
n
n
e
’s

 C
a
th

o
lic

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
–
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
ty

 A
u
d
it
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
M

e
a
ls

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 –

 

S
ir
 J

o
h
n
 C

a
s
s
 R

e
d
c
o
a
t 
–
 S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l.
  

 

S
U

B
S

T
A

N
T

IA
L

 
 

 
 

 
E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

 
E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 –
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

 
E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

B
u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

 
E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 –

 F
o
llo

w
 U

p
 A

u
d
it
 

 
E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 –

 C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

C
a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 F
o
llo

w
 U

p
 a

u
d
it
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

C
o
u
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
  
- 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
y
 –

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

-I
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

 
M

o
d
e
ra

te
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 

B
a
n
c
ro

ft
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
C

o
-O

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 -

 F
o
llo

w
 U

p
 

 

Page 25



 

Page 26



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

A
u

d
it

s
 U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

: 
 L

im
it

e
d

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
 T

it
le

 
D

a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
in

a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
–
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
H

o
m

e
s
 (

T
H

H
) 

O
c
t.
 

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
u
d
it
in

g
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
’ 

fi
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
 

T
H

H
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
s
 

a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

 O
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 w
a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 b

y
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 A
 n

e
w

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 
M

a
n
u
a

l 
w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

th
a
t 

a
ll 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 
a
b
o
v
e
 
£
2
5
,0

0
0
 
a
re

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 
fi
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
u
d
it
. 

 
T

h
e
 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 d
iv

is
io

n
s
 o

f 
d
u
ty

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
u
r 

te
s
ti
n
g

 s
h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 f

iv
e

 
o
u
t 

o
f 

s
e
v
e
n
 f

in
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 e
x
a
m

in
e
d
 b

y
 A

u
d
it
, 

th
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r’
s
 l

in
e

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 P

a
n
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
  

W
e
 

w
e
re

 
o
f 

th
e
 

o
p
in

io
n
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

le
v
e
l,
 

e
x
te

n
t 

a
n
d
 
q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 

te
s
ti
n
g
 
o
n
 
fi
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 P

a
n
e
l 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 

a
s
 

th
a
t 

o
f 

a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

A
u
d
it
o
r.

 
 

W
e
 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 (

c
o
s
t-

b
e
n
e
fi
t)

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n

 t
o
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
a

u
d
it
in

g
 f

in
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
b
y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

. 
 W

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
rs

 w
e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

w
h

ic
h
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 

R
a
te

s
 (

S
O

R
).

  
E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

ri
tt

e
n
 q

u
o
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
fo

r 
th

e
s
e
 
n
o
n
-S

O
R

 
w

o
rk

s
 
w

a
s
 
n
o
t 

fo
u
n
d
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
fi
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

fi
le

 
to

 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

b
le

 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

ti
m

e
 

ta
k
e
n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

 
o
f 

th
e
 

F
in

a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t,
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

in
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 e

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e
 

F
in

a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
t.
  
  

 A
ll 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 T

H
H

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
  

L
im

it
e
d
 

 

Page 27



   M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

 T
H

H
 
a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
s
 
th

e
 
is

s
u
e
s
 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 
fi
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u

n
t 

a
u
d
it
in

g
. 

A
ft

e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 
w

it
h
 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 
T

e
a
m

, 
a
 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 
lis

t 
o
f 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
lin

e
s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
v
e
rs

io
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 b

y
 A

u
d

it
 o

n
 5

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r.

 T
H

H
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
to

 a
n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
-w

id
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

im
in

g
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

M
o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
T

H
H

 w
ill

 l
ia

is
e
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 t

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
t 

ti
m

e
lin

e
. 

A
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 a

u
d
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 T

e
a
m

 i
n
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

s
’ 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
. 

      

Page 28



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

S
t 

A
n
n
e
’s

  
C

a
th

o
lic

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
s
c
h
o
o
l.
 
 
O

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

h
a
s
 
a
n
 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 
G

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 
B

o
d
y
 
a
n
d
 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
  

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 w
e
re

 a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 
in

 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

b
a
n
k
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

; 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

g
o
o

d
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 
fo

r 
in

c
o
m

e
 

a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

; 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
; 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g

 
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
rd

in
g

 
o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
; 

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 

a
n
d
 
p
a
y
ro

ll 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t;

 
re

c
o
rd

in
g

 
o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

; 
d
is

a
s
te

r 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

; 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
. 

 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

 

• 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
e
 i
te

m
 (

a
 n

e
w

ly
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 l
a
p
to

p
) 

th
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 f

o
u
n
d
 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
 i

te
m

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
n
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g

is
te

r;
  

• 
N

o
t 

a
ll 

G
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 d
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
fo

rm
; 

• 
T

h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 
n
o
 
e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e
 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

w
a
s
 m

in
u
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 B
o
d
y
, 

o
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

; 
 

• 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
y
 P

o
lic

y
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 o
r 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

 
&

 S
a
fe

ty
 P

o
lic

y
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 (
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
);

 

• 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 s

h
e
e
ts

 t
o
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 i

n
v
o
ic

e
s
 

a
re

 n
o
t 
re

ta
in

e
d
; 
 

• 
P

e
tt

y
 c

a
s
h
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 o

b
s
e
rv

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

la
im

s
 f

o
rm

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 m

o
n
ie

s
; 

• 
T

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
fu

n
d
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 o

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 p

e
ri
o
d
s
; 
a
n
d
 

• 
T

h
re

e
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 i
n
e
lig

ib
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 w

e
re

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

fr
e
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

. 

A
ll 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
e
re

 
a
g

re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

H
e
a
d
 

T
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
G

o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
  

L
im

it
e
d
 

 

Page 29



   M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 (

C
S

F
) 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
v
e
 p

u
t 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
:-

  

• 
In

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 n
o
w

 a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
it
e
m

 o
n
 t

h
e
 D

M
T

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 f

o
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
. 
  

• 
In

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 C

S
F

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 F
in

a
n
c
e

 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
q

u
ir
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

• 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 b

y
 C

S
F

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
in

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

: 
 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
v
e
 a

c
te

d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 t

im
e
fr

a
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
y
 a

re
  
fu

lly
 c

o
m

m
it
 t
o

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
y
: 

 

• 
b
y
 t

ra
c
k
in

g
 a

ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

  

• 
c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
te

p
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s
  

• 
to

 t
a
k
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

it
ig

a
ti
n
g

 e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 r

is
k
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
in

 i
ts

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

        

Page 30



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

S
ir
 J

o
h
n
 C

a
s
s
 

a
n
d
 R

e
d
c
o
a
t 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
S

c
h
o
o
l.
 

      

N
o
v
. 

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g

, 
c
o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g

, 
b
a
n
k
in

g
, 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 f
o
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 w
e
re

 s
o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

. 
 O

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 s

h
o

w
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 b
a
s
ic

 s
y
s
te

m
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 m

in
im

a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

c
a
s
h
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 w

a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
 

to
 b

e
 b

o
th

 t
im

e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

in
g

 a
n
d
 l

a
b
o
u
r 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
, 

re
c
o
rd

 k
e
e
p
in

g
 w

a
s
 p

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t.

  
W

ri
tt
e
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
, 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 
D

a
ily

 i
n
c
o

m
e
 w

a
s
 c

o
u

n
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 b

y
 

s
o
m

e
 s

ta
ff

 b
u
t 

n
o
t 

b
y
 o

th
e
rs

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 i

n
c
o
m

e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 t

ic
k
e
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

r 
m

e
a
l 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 

 C
a
s
h
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

ta
ff
 

w
e
re

 
n
o
t 

s
ig

n
e
d
 
fo

r.
 
 
O

u
r 

te
s
ti
n
g

 
o
f 

th
e
 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
re

c
o
rd

in
g

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
o
f 

p
ri
m

e
 
re

c
o
rd

s
 
s
h
o
w

e
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 
w

a
s
 
n
o

 
re

c
o
n

c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 
o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 h

e
n
c
e
 w

e
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

a
b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

in
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
, 
re

c
o
n
c
ile

d
 a

n
d
 b

a
n
k
e
d
. 

 In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 a
u
d
it
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 

fu
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

m
e
a
ls

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 c
a
s
h
le

s
s
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
  

 
 A

ll 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
e
re

 
a
g

re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

B
u
rs

a
r 

a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
l’s

 f
in

a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t.

  
F

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 H
e
a
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

 

Page 31



   M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

 T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
y
 a

re
  
fu

lly
 c

o
m

m
it
 t
o

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
y
: 

 

• 
b
y
 t

ra
c
k
in

g
 a

ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

  

• 
c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
te

p
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s
  

• 
to

 t
a
k
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

it
ig

a
ti
n
g

 e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 r

is
k
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
in

 i
ts

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

            

Page 32



  S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

a
l 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

 T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 –

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

O
c
t.
  

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 
a
u
d
it
 
w

a
s
 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
to

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 r
e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 s

in
g

le
 l
in

e
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

• 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 p

o
lic

y
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
; 

a
n
d
 

• 
T

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T

e
a
m

 (
C

S
P

T
) 

h
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

c
o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ri
ty

 o
f 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
w

e
re

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 
to

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

T
h

e
 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

G
ro

u
p
 (

P
R

G
) 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
s
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
. 

 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
:-

 

• 
In

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g

 
p
a
p
e
rs

 
u
s
e
d
 

to
 

d
e
ri
v
e
 

S
I 

1
9
5

 
o
n
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d

 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 
g
ra

d
in

g
 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h
is

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
w

a
s
 
c
le

a
rl
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

p
a
p
e
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
th

e
re

 
is

 
n
o
 

c
le

a
r 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

R
G

; 
 

• 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
o
rk

in
g

 p
a
p
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
te

 S
I 

2
0
1
 (

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
);

 

• 
T

h
e
 
D

a
ta

 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 
P

o
lic

y
, 

w
h
ils

t 
fr

e
e
ly

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
v
ia

 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

in
tr

a
n
e
t,
 

h
a
s
 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

fo
rm

a
lly

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 

to
 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
; 

a
n
d
  

• 
C

S
P

T
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 s

p
re

a
d
 s

h
e
e
t 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 

w
h
e
n

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 d

u
e
 f

o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g

 e
tc

. 
N

o
 s

p
re

a
d
 s

h
e
e
t 

is
 i

n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

in
g

le
 d

a
ta

 l
is

t 
(f

o
rm

e
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

d
a
ta

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
).

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 
b
a
s
is

. 

T
h
e
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

w
e
re

 
a
g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r,

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

P
o
lic

y
 

&
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i

s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 –

 
L
e
g

a
l.
 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

Page 33



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
- 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

O
c
t.
  

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 s

o
u
g

h
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

re
 s

o
u
n
d

, 
s
e
c
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

• 
T

h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

h
o
w

 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 
th

a
t 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

is
 
d
ir
e
c
te

d
 
to

w
a
rd

s
 
it
s
 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
; 

• 
C

a
p
it
a
l 

re
c
e
ip

ts
 

a
re

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t’
s
 

te
a
m

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

e
x
tr

a
c
ti
n
g

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i

n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

c
o
d
e
s
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 O

ra
c
le

 J
D

E
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
; 

• 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
a
re

 
re

s
p
o
n

s
ib

le
 
fo

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

• 
R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
th

e
 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

ix
e
d
 a

s
s
e
t 
re

g
is

te
r 

is
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t

e
a
m

. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
s
: 

• 
T

h
e
 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
C

A
P

S
 
a
n

d
 
th

e
 
fi
x
e
d
 
a
s
s
e
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
is

 
c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 t
e
a
m

 o
n
c
e
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 C

A
P

S
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

D
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r.

 
W

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 

h
a
d
 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 d
o
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 

a
 f

u
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
d
ra

w
in

g
 u

p
 t
h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e
e
t.

 

T
h
e
 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
 
w

e
re

 
a
g

re
e
d
 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
C

h
ie

f 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
fi
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

is
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
  

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

 

Page 34



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

B
u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l-
 
S

y
s
te

m
s
 

A
u
d
it
 

O
c
t.
  

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 
a
u
d
it
 

s
o
u
g

h
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

to
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
t 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
c
o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 r
e
v
e
n
u

e
 b

u
d
g

e
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 s

o
u
n
d
, 

s
e
c
u
re

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

a
re

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

• 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
8
4
m

 w
o
rt

h
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

u
t 

s
ti
ll 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

; 

• 
T

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g

e
t 

a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

to
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
; 

a
n
d
  
 

• 
B

u
d
g

e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 
is

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

u
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

J
D

E
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
o
ft

w
a
re

. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 

th
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

to
 

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
 

th
e
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

‘b
u
d
g

e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 t
o
o
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t’
 a

s
 i
t 

w
a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
 n

o
t 

to
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 

th
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

W
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
: 

• 
T

h
e
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 
s
p
e
c
if
ie

s
 
th

a
t 

“f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

s
e
n
d
 

d
ra

ft
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

b
o
o
k
 

p
a
g

e
s
 
to

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 
fo

r 
c
h
e
c
k
in

g
” 

b
y
 

th
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
. 

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 r

a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
u
r 

te
s
ti
n
g

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
is

 o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
t;
 

• 
T

h
e
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
R

e
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m

 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
to

 
s
u
b
m

it
 

m
a
s
te

r 
s
p
re

a
d
 s

h
e
e
ts

 o
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

, 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
. 
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

p
re

a
d
 s

h
e
e
ts

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 f

u
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
a
n
d
  

• 
T

h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
r’
s
 
m

a
n
u
a
l 

w
a
s
 
la

s
t 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 
in

 
M

a
y
 

2
0
1
0
. 

 

T
h
e
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

w
e
re

 
a
g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 
H

e
a
d
 

- 
F

in
a

n
c
e
, 

R
is

k
 

a
n
d
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

   

Page 35



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

M
e
d

iu
m

 
T

e
rm

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 

–
 

F
o
llo

w
 U

p
 A

u
d
it
 

O
c
t.
 

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 
a
u
d
it
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

in
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
  

 O
u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

fo
u
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 M

T
F

P
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d
 

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

ri
s
k
s
 

fo
r 

a
s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 M

T
F

P
. 

 T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

c
h
e
c
k
in

g
 
h
a
s
 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

, 
s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 
te

s
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g

 h
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 M

T
F

P
 f

o
rm

u
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 

M
T

F
P

 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
y
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
. 
 

T
h
e
 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
p
la

n
 
is

 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 
o
n
 
a
n

 
o

n
-g

o
in

g
 
b
a

s
is

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 
th

e
 
M

A
B

 
S

A
R

P
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 F
o
rm

a
l 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 l

e
a
rn

e
d

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

a
n
d
 
th

e
 
o
ff

ic
e
 
c
o
p
y
 
o
f 

M
T

F
P

 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
to

 
b

e
 
c
ro

s
s
 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
d
 
b
a
c
k
 
to

 
th

e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

. 
  

 A
ll 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
 -

 F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
 

 

Page 36



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 –

 C
h
ild

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

O
c
t.
  

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 
o
f 

th
is

 
a
u
d
it
 
w

a
s
 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e
 
to

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 s

o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
v
ie

w
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o
g

e
th

e
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i

s
s
u
e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 
L
o
c
a
l 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 
C

h
ild

re
n
 
B

o
a
rd

 
to

 
u
n
d
e
rp

in
 
th

e
ir
 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

 
W

e
 r

a
is

e
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
: 

• 
A

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

d
ra

ft
e
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
th

e
 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

is
 

u
n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 

b
y
 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
m

o
s
t 
n
o
ta

b
ly

 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

; 

• 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 f

ie
ld

w
o
rk

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
; 

• 
A

lt
h
o
u
g

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
; 

 

• 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 o

n
 a

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t

e
s
ti
n
g

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

t 
th

re
e
 a

n
d
 

s
ix

 m
o
n
th

 i
n
te

rv
a
ls

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 a

t 
th

e
 1

5
 m

o
n
th

 t
ri
g
g

e
r 

p
o
in

t 
if
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
; 

• 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

s
u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

m
in

u
te

d
 

a
t 

p
re

s
e
n
t 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 
th

e
 

m
a
tt

e
rs

 
a
ri
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 u

p
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
; 

a
n
d
 

• 
C

a
s
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 m

in
u
te

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
d

 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

ri
m

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
–
 C

h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
. 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
  

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

  

Page 37



   T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

C
a
re

e
rs

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

–
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

O
c
t 

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 
a
re

 
in

 
p
la

c
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

k
e
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

re
la

ti
n
g

 
to

 
th

e
 

C
a
re

e
rs

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 

to
 

a
le

rt
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 

a
n
y
 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

 

• 
T

h
e
 C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 T

e
a
m

 P
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 

b
u

t 
w

e
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

fi
n
d
 

a
n
y
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

te
a
m

 
p
la

n
 

w
a
s
 

fo
rm

a
lly

 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

 
b
y
 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.

 
 

In
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

c
a
re

e
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
e
d
, 

b
u
t 

th
re

e
 

o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 1

0
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 o

u
r 

s
a
m

p
le

 h
a
d

 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
a
te

d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s
; 

• 
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

a
re

e
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
o
w

s
 

th
a
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
/i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

to
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle

g
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 w
it
h
in

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,
 

b
u
t 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

; 

• 
W

e
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

iv
e
 i

n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

fo
llo

w
-u

p
 d

u
e
 d

a
te

 h
a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
/a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

fo
llo

w
-u

p
 o

r 
m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 (

i.
e
. 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 a

 d
ir

e
c
t/
tw

o
 w

a
y
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
rs

o
n
).

  
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 o

n
e
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

w
a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 h

a
d
 g

a
in

e
d
 a

 p
la

c
e
 a

t 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 N

E
E

T
 r

e
g

is
te

r;
 

a
n
d
 

• 
O

n
ly

 
o
n
e
 
o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
e
ig

h
t 

k
e
y
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 
(K

P
Is

) 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 
th

e
 

C
a
re

e
rs

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

T
e
a
m

 
P

la
n
 

is
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

D
M

T
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is

 
lim

it
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

K
P

Is
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 n

o
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 A
ll 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
  

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

 

Page 38



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

Y
o
u
th

 
O

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

 F
o
llo

w
 U

p
 a

u
d
it
 

S
e
p
t.

 
2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 
fo

llo
w

 
u
p
 
a
u
d

it
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
th

e
 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 
m

a
d
e
 
in

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 
a
g

re
e
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
. 

 T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

 t
h
e
 C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

D
is

o
rd

e
r 

A
c
t 

1
9
9
8
 a

n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 l

o
c
a
lly

 b
y
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g

e
n
c
y
 t

e
a
m

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
ta

k
e
s
 
th

e
 
le

a
d
 
ro

le
. 

 
 
Y

o
u
th

 
O

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 
 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

w
o

 m
a
in

 g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 –
 t

h
o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 o

ff
e
n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
. 

O
u
r 

fo
llo

w
 u

p
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
f 

tw
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 1
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

t 
th

e
 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 b

o
th

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
. 

 O
f 

fo
u
rt

e
e
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
, 
tw

e
lv

e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d
 w

e
ll.

  
 A

 
te

a
m

 
p
la

n
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
h
a
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
re

a
te

d
 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 
In

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

Y
o
u
th

 
O

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 
H

e
r 

M
a
je

s
ty

’s
 
In

s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 
o
f 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
s
 
(H

M
IP

).
 
T

h
e
 

te
a
m

 p
la

n
 f

o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
 

u
p
 

a
u
d
it
 

s
h
o

w
e

d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 
w

a
s
 

s
ti
ll 

s
c
o
p
e
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 p

e
tt
y
 c

a
s
h
, 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,

 o
y
s
te

r 
c
a
rd

 u
s
a
g

e
, 

in
v
e
n
to

ry
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 

m
o
b
ile

 
p
h
o
n
e
 u

s
a
g

e
. 

  
  

A
ll 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r,

 Y
o
u
th

 
O

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 c

o
p
y
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i

s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

  

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

  

Page 39



    T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
  

N
o
v
. 

 
2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

o
f 

th
is

 
a
u
d
it
 

w
a
s
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

to
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

• 
T

h
e
re

 
is

 
a
n
 

A
d
v
is

o
ry

 
G

ro
u
p
 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 

a
t 

e
a
c
h
 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 

w
it
h
 

a
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
; 

• 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 c

o
re

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n
s
; 

• 
A

 b
u
d
g

e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

th
e
n
 b

e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o
c
a
lit

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a
d
; 

• 
In

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 ‘
g
ra

n
ts

 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
’ 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

; 
a
n
d
 

• 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
: 

• 
T

e
s
ti
n
g

 f
o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 

h
a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
; 

• 
A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

; 

• 
T

h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
a
s
s
e
t 
re

g
is

te
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
; 

 

• 
A

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

s
to

c
k
 c

h
e
c
k
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

t 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
; 

• 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
is

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 
re

c
o
rd

s
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
s
u
c
h
 d

is
p
o
s
a
ls

; 
a
n
d
 

• 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

ru
s
te

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 G

ro
u
p
 (

T
H

O
G

) 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
e
a
s
e
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 

b
o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s
. 

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

n
o
 i

n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
–
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
. 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
  

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

 

Page 40



   T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

C
o
u
rt

 
o
f 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
  

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

O
c
t.
  

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
u
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 w
e
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

fo
r 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g

 a
n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
ff

a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

th
o
s
e
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
h
o

 
a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
rs

. 
 

 U
p
o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
fr

o
m

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 A
d
u
lt
s
, 

a
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

a
 C

o
u
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i

s
 a

 l
e
g

a
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
w

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
D

e
p
u
ty

 t
o
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
, 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 t

h
e
n
 a

c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

a
m

e
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
lie

n
t.

  
T

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 t
h
e
 j

u
d
g

e
 t

h
a
t 

a
 C

o
u
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 (

C
o
P

) 
o
rd

e
r 

is
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
u
s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

lie
n
t 

c
a
n
 n

o
 l

o
n
g

e
r 

b
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 h

is
/h

e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
ff

a
ir
s
 o

n
 a

 d
a
ily

 b
a
s
is

. 
 T

h
is

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 t

h
e
 

c
lie

n
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

. 
 O

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
v
e
ra

ll,
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
d
e
q

u
a
te

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

w
a
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 w

e
 w

e
re

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
A

H
W

 
F

in
a
n
c
e
, 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 t

e
a
m

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
lie

n
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 

fa
ll 

in
to

 
g

a
p
s
 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
th

e
 
tw

o
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
th

a
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
w

it
h
in

 
A

H
W

 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 
te

a
m

 
a
re

 
d
e
p
lo

y
e
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
. 

 T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 s
in

g
le

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 k

e
y
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
is

k
 r

e
g

is
te

r.
  

W
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 c

lie
n
ts

’ 
b
a
n
k
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 o

n
 c

lie
n
ts

’ 
m

o
n
ie

s
 (

u
p
 t

o
 £

2
M

) 
is

 m
a
x
im

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
D

e
p
u
ty

 i
s
 

fu
lf
ill

in
g

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t’
s
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
. 
  

 A
ll 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 s

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
, 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 C

h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

  

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

 

Page 41



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

T
h
e
ra

p
y
- 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 A

u
d
it
 

O
c
t.
  

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
re

 s
o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
n
d
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

• 
A

ll 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

fr
o
m

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n

e
r.

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls

 
in

 
p
la

c
e
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

e
 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs

 
a
re

 
a
d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 e
tc

. 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
t;
 a

n
d
 

• 
A

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 l

in
e
 
w

it
h
 i

n
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
A

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

u
n

ti
l 
a
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 (

d
is

a
b
le

d
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 g

ra
n
t)

 a
n
d
 o

r 
m

o
n
ie

s
 o

w
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
u
s
e
rs

  
is

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 r

e
c
e
ip

te
d
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
: 

• 
T

h
e
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
n
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 

e
a
c
h
 o

th
e
r.

  
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 n
o
te

s
 w

e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 i
n
 d

ra
ft

 f
o
rm

a
t.
 T

e
s
ti
n
g

 a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

y
p
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
; 

a
n
d
  
 

• 
O

u
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
a
n
d
 
m

in
o
r 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 
w

h
e
re

 
th

e
 

in
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

d
id

 n
o

t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

ti
m

e
fr

a
m

e
. 

  
W

h
ils

t,
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
p
re

a
d
 s

h
e
e
ts

 a
re

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 c
a
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

it
 w

a
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

re
g

u
la

r 
c
h
a
s
in

g
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 w

h
e
re

 d
e
la

y
s
 w

e
re

 o
c
c
u
rr

in
g

, 
w

e
 w

e
re

 u
n
a

b
le

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 

ro
o
t 
c
a
u
s
e
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

ri
m

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a

d
 –

 A
d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 f

in
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i

s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
–
 C

h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

   

Page 42



 T
it

le
 

D
a

te
 

o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 F
in

d
in

g
s
 

S
c

a
le

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
L

e
v
e

l 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

-I
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
  

O
c
t 

2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-I
. 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

a
re

a
s
:-

 
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

S
y
s
te

m
 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

, 
In

te
rf

a
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 

a
n
d
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
, 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
A

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a

n
d
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

:-
  

 W
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 s

e
v
e
n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
:-

 
 

• 
P

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 ‘
D

e
fa

u
lt
’ 
p
ro

fi
le

 s
o
 t

h
a
t 

u
s
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

s
 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 P
o
lic

y
; 

• 
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-I
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 t
o
 n

o
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r 
w

h
e
n
 a

 u
s
e
r 

n
o
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

i;
 

• 
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
n
d
 t
e
s
t 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 D

is
a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 P
la

n
; 

• 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 
u
p
d
a
te

 
a
n
d
 
re

v
ie

w
 
th

e
 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
; 

• 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 M
a

in
te

n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

th
a
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
ts

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t;
 

• 
T

o
 c

o
n
fi
g

u
re

 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
n
p
u
t 

fi
e
ld

 f
o
r 

a
 c

lie
n
t’
s
 f

o
re

n
a
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
rn

a
m

e
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

 v
a
lid

 f
o
rm

a
t 

c
h
e
c
k
 t

o
 r

e
je

c
t 

n
o
n
-a

lp
h
a
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

rs
; 
a
n
d
 

• 
T

h
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

th
e
 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

-I
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

re
p
la

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 J

D
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

 
T

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 I

T
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r-

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a
n
d
 I

C
T

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

A
g

ili
s
y
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
H

e
a
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r.
  

  

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

Page 43



  T
it

le
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 /
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

S
c
a
le

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 

B
a
n
c
ro

ft
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
-

O
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
  

 F
o
llo

w
 U

p
 

N
o
v
. 

 
2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
B

a
n
c
ro

ft
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 (

T
M

C
).

  
A

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
4
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 i

n
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 w

it
h
 

s
ix

 s
ti
ll 

re
q

u
ir
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

ix
, 

a
re

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 

b
e
lo

w
: 

 • 
T

h
e
 T

M
C

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 i

n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
th

e
s
e

 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 d

e
ta

il 
g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

, 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

e
x
p
lic

it
ly

 s
ta

te
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
ro

le
s
, 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

o
r 

T
M

C
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

; 

• 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 o

n
e
 i

n
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 p
a
c
k
a
g

e
 s

k
ill

s
. 

 T
h
e
 T

M
C

 
h
a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

 b
o
o
k
k
e
e
p
e
r 

w
h
o
 d

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
/ 

b
o
o
k
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 o

n
 T

A
S

 
B

o
o
k
s
 (

a
 S

A
G

E
 p

ro
d
u
c
t)

; 
  

• 
T

e
s
ti
n
g

 o
f 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

2
0
 c

h
e
q

u
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 t

h
e
 n

in
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 

w
h
e
re

 a
n
 o

rd
e
r 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 r

a
is

e
d
, 

fi
v
e
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
. 

 F
o
r 

th
e
 f

o
u
r 

o
rd

e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 s
ig

n
e
d
, 

w
e
 w

e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

th
is

 w
a
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
a
s
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 

in
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 
In

 s
e
v
e
n
 c

a
s
e
s
, 

w
e
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

lo
c
a
te

 a
n
 o

rd
e
r 

o
n
 f

ile
; 
  

• 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

tw
o
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 t

o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 c

h
e
q

u
e
s
 a

n
d
 B

A
C

S
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 T

M
C

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
p
lic

it
ly

 
s
ta

te
s
 t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
e
q

u
e
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
; 

• 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 b

a
n
k
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 s
in

c
e

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

th
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 s

ig
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h
o
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 t

h
e
m

. 
 

T
h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 

n
o
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

to
 

s
h
o
w

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

b
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 a

n
 i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r,

 a
s
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 b

o
o
k
k
e
e
p
e
r;

 a
n
d
  

• 
T

h
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

R
e
g

is
te

r 
is

 h
e
ld

 b
y
 t

h
e
 T

M
C

’s
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

a
s
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

 
T

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

th
e
 T

M
C

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 T

H
H

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
  

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

Page 44



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
  

F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
 A

u
d

it
s
 –

 L
is

t 
o

f 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 s
ti

ll
 t

o
 b

e
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
   A

u
d

it
 S

u
b

je
c
t 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
a
m

e
 

 M
e
d

iu
m

 T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 o

ff
ic

e
 c

o
p
y
 o

f 
M

T
F

P
 i
s
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
 

fu
ll 

a
u
d
it
 

tr
a
il 

o
f 

th
e
 

fi
g

u
re

s
 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

M
T

F
P

 
is

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 
T

h
e
 
R

is
k
 
E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 
b
y
 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
p
a
p
e
rs

 

 A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

 O
la

d
a
p
o
 

S
h
o
n
o
la

 

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

T
h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 b
y
 t

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 o

n
 s

ta
ff

 a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
le

a
v
e
 

 K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 
 S

tu
a
rt

 J
o
h
n
s
o
n
 

 

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 n
o
te

s
 f

o
r 

O
y
s
te

r 
c
a
rd

 u
s
a
g

e
. 

T
h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
s
p
o
t 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
O

y
s
te

r 
c
a
rd

s
. 

 K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 
 S

tu
a
rt

 J
o
h
n
s
o
n
 

 

   

Page 45



 

 

Page 46



REPORT TO: 

 

Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

 

14th January 2013 

CLASSIFICATION 

 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 
REPORT OF: 

 
Corporate Director, Resources  
 

ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Risk Management and Audit 
 

 
Revised Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 
 

Ward(s) Affected:  
 
N/A 
 

 

 

1. SUMMARY 

 

1.1. This report provides an update of audit activity planned for this financial year 
and reflects changes made to the original internal audit plan as a result of 
changing priorities of the authority within the resources available to perform 
audit work.   

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

2.1  The Audit Committee is asked to endorse the revised 2012/13 internal audit 
plan attached at Appendix 2. 

 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 
 
 

  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 47



 

 - 2 - 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 The original internal audit plan was prepared at the start of the current financial 
year and was presented to the Audit Committee for endorsement in March 
2012. The internal audit plan was formulated using the governance model 
whereby four key areas were assessed for all operations of the Council and 
prioritised. Details of the governance based Audit Assessment methodology, 
Audit Strategy and Internal Audit Terms of Reference are attached at Appendix 
3.  

 
3.2 In line with the internal audit strategy, the plan has been refreshed and some 

changes made to the original annual audit plan. The reasons for this are as 
follows:  

 
l  Requests from officers to perform audits that were not originally 

planned; 
 

• Requests from officers to increase the scope of audits which has 
resulted in higher allocation of audit days; 

 
l  Requests from Chief Officers to defer audits due to service 

restructuring and/or changes made to existing systems and the 
need to allow a period of bedding in; 

 
l  Make use of days provided in the original plan that had not been 

allocated to specific audits; 
 

l  To avoid duplication of work with either the external auditor or other 
assurance provider; and 

 
l  Additional commitment to unplanned work. 

 
 

4. Updated Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 
 
4.1 Appendix 1 summarises audits that have been added to or deferred from the 

original internal audit plan.  Appendix 2 shows the updated internal audit plan 
following the changes and provides for provision of unallocated days which could 
be used for specific audits at the request of Directorates, thus retaining some 
flexibility in the plan.  The summary below shows how the plan has changed. 

 
4.2. In updating the audit plan, we have taken account of requests by management 

to extend the scope of audits already approved.  Where possible, these changes 
have been absorbed within the existing provision, although additional time has 
been necessary. 

Page 48



 

 - 3 - 

 
 

 

 
Number of days originally planned    1,325 
 
Add: Additional audits added to the plan       215 
(Please refer to Appendix 1) 
 
Less: Audits to be considered as part of  
2013/14 Audit Plan             70 
(Please refer to Appendix 1) 
 
Less: Use of previously unallocated days  
to specific audits             50 
 
Less: Use of reactive fraud allocation          35 
 
 
Number of days per the Revised plan       1,385 

 
 

5.  Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

5.1 Any financial implications arising from this report are contained within the body 
of the report. 

 
 

6.  Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 
 Services) 

 

6.1. The Council is required to ensure that it has a sound system of internal control 
that facilitates effective exercise of the Council’s functions and includes 
arrangements for the management of risk.  The Council is also required to 
maintain an effective system of internal audit of its system of internal control in 
accordance with proper practices.  One of the functions of the Audit Committee 
under the Council’s Constitution is to review internal audit findings.  The 
consideration by the Audit Committee of this report is consistent with the 
Council’s obligations and is within the Committee’s functions. 

 
 

7.  One Tower Hamlets Considerations 
 

7.1 Each audit activity within the revised audit plan provides a link with the Council’s 
corporate and strategic plan priorities including that of One Tower Hamlets. 

 
 

8.  Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 

8.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 

Page 49



 

 - 4 - 

 
 
 

9.  Risk Management Implications  
 
9.1. The revised audit plan should pick up some of the key areas of risk exposure to 

the Council and audit reviews of these areas should provide a source of 
assurance to those charged with governance. 

 
 

10.  Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 

10.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 50



 1

APPENDIX 1 
A Summary of Changes to the Internal Audit Plan – 2012/13 
 

 Directorate No. of days No. of days 

Original 2012/13 Audit Plan   
 

1325 

Audits Added to the Original Plan    

Grant Certification 

Youth Service  

CLC 

CLC 

         5     

       15          

 

Localisation of services through the 
“hubs” 

CLC        10  

Bangladeshi Parents and Carers’ 
Association 

AHWB        10  

Community Infrastructure Levy 

Tower Hamlets Somali Organisation 

Management of PFI Contract 

Schools Audits 

D&R 

D&R 

CSF 

CSF 

10 

20 

10 

60 

 

Recruitment Audit 

R2P Pre-receipting review                               

Leavers Follow Up  

Specialist Repairs 

Lifts Renewal Programme 

Final Accounts 

Corporate 

Corporate 

Corporate 

THH 

THH 

THH 

15 

12 

10 

10 

10 

10 

 

Competitive tendering RES 18  

    

Sub Total      225 

   1550 
Less  
Audits amended or considered as 
part of 2013/14 Audit Plan 

   

Members’ Enquiries ACE 15  
Electronic Home Care AHWB 12  
Selection of contractors  RES   8  

Domiciliary Care Contracts AHWB 15  

Commissioning Adults Services AHWB 15  
Nomination Rights D&R 10  
Olympic planning & risk management CLC 10  
Victoria Park Post contract CLC         10  
Sub Total     95 
    
Use of Management Request 
contingency 
Use of Reactive Fraud provision 

 35 
 

35 

 

Sub Total     70 
    

Total Revised Plan    1385 

 

Page 51



 

 

1 

                APPENDIX 2 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
2012/13 Revised Internal Audit Plan 
 
 

 
 

Audit Days Pages 

Corporate systems and Council–wide reviews 165 2-4 

Children, Schools and Families 267 5-6 

Communities, Localities & Culture 109 7-8 

Tower Hamlets Homes 165 9-11 

Development & Renewal 136 12-14 

Adult, Health and Wellbeing 44 15 

Resources & core financial systems 234 16-19 

Information technology audits 80 20 

Follow up, management and reactive fraud provision 185 20 

Total Provision 1385 - 

 

P
age 52



 

 

2 

 
 
 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Auditable System Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 

Corporate Systems & 
Council Wide Reviews 

     

Contract Management This audit will provide assurance that the 
Council’s contract management and 
monitoring arrangements are sound and 
secure.  A sample of contracts will be 
selected to test compliance with corporate 
procedures on contract management. 

 

H 15 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets  

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Management of Complaints This audit will examine systems for 
managing and monitoring various complaints 
received by the Council to ensure that sound 
arrangements are in place.   

M 10 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets  

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Scheme of Delegation The Council requires a scheme of delegation 
to manage those operations and functions 
which are delegated to management.  This 
audit will examine the Council’s scheme of 
management delegation and its compliance. 

H 10 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets  

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Management of Efficiency 
Projects 

This review will provide assurance that 
adequate controls are in place to manage 
and monitor the delivery of efficiency projects 
across the Council. 

H 15 Strategic Risk 
Register RS0038 and 
RS0039. 

One Tower Hamlets  

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

P
age 53



 

 

3 

 
 
 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Auditable System Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 

Corporate Systems & 
Council Wide Reviews 

     

Data Quality This audit will provide assurance that there 
are sound controls in place to manage and 
monitor the quality of data produced at 
various levels within the organisation. 

H 10 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets  

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Waivers of Financial 
Regulations 

The audit will focus on the Council’s 
arrangements for managing and monitoring 
waivers of Financial Regulations by officers.   

H 5 Audit Needs Analysis 
One Tower Hamlets  

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Use of Oyster Cards This audit will review systems for managing 
and monitoring the use of Oyster Cards 
across the Council. 

M 15 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Equality Impact Assessment The objective of this audit is to provide 
assurance over the Council’s systems and 
procedures for carrying out Equality Impact 
Assessment.   

H 15 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Translation services To provide assurance that the Council’s 
arrangements for procuring, paying and 
monitoring translation services are sound 
and secure. 

M 15 Audit Needs Analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

P
age 54



 

 

4 

 
 
 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Auditable System Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 

Corporate Systems & 
Council Wide Reviews 

     

Mayors Bursary grants This will be review of the administration and 
control of the Bursary Grants to eligible pupils 
attending secondary and further education 
schools and colleges. 

H 8 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Recruitment  To follow up recommendations made at the 
conclusion of the previously agreed report. 

H 15 Management 
Request 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

  Leavers Follow Up To follow up recommendations made at the 
conclusion of the previously agreed report. 

H 10 

 

Management 
Request 

 One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

R2P Pre-receipting checks To carry out audit checks on a sample of 
receipted orders to ensure that they are 
receipted only after GRN has been received. 

H 12 Audit Commission One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



 

 

5 

 
 
 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Auditable System Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 

Corporate Systems & 
Council Wide Reviews 

     

 

Corporate Governance            

  

This generic review will incorporate the 
preparation and validation of the Annual 
Governance Statement and provide 
assurance on the progress made in improving 
controls around those specific governance 
issues reported within the AGS 

 

 

H 

 

10 

 

Audit Needs Analysis 

 

One Tower Hamlets 

 Working efficiently and     
effectively as One Council. P

age 56



 

 

6 

 

 

 
REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 

 
Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit 

Days 
Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 

Children, Schools and 
Families 

     

Special Education Needs - 
assessment and 
commissioning 

This review will examine the systems for 
assessing and commissioning services for 
children with special education needs.  

M 15 Audit needs analysis A Prosperous Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. 

 

Children’s Centres This audit will be probity audits to a 
sample of children’s centres to provide 
assurance that systems for governance 
and financial management are sound and 
secure. 

M 10 
Audit needs analysis 

A Prosperous Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. 

Contract Audit To provide assurance on the 
management and administration of 
building contracts 

M 10 
Audit needs analysis 

A Prosperous Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. 

Commissioning of social 
care services 

To examine systems and procedures for 
commissioning services for children, 

M 15 
Audit needs analysis 

A Prosperous Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. 

Children Looked After This audit will provide assurance that 
systems for services provided to Looked 
after children are sound and secure. 

H 15 
Audit needs analysis 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Focus on Early Intervention 

P
age 57



 

 

7 

 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit 

Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Careers Services The review will examine the key controls 
over the management of careers service 
to ensure that key service objectives are 
achieved. 

H 12 Audit needs analysis A Prosperous Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. Council 

Core Assessments This audit will provide assurance that 
management oversight and control in 
carrying out initial and core assessments 
is sound and secure.  

H 15 Management request A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Focus on Early Intervention 

 

School Meals Income 
Collection and Banking 

To provide assurance that systems and 
controls for collecting and banking 
schools meals income are sound and 
secure.  A sample of secondary schools 
will be selected for testing. 

M 15 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Schools' Probity Audits  School visits are undertaken using a risk 
based approach to review mainly the 
arrangements for school governance, 
budget planning and control, accounting 
and financial control, purchasing, 
personnel/payroll administration and 
control, IT Security and asset 
management. 

H 150 From Audit Needs 
Assessment  

A Prosperous Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Financial Management of 
PFI Accounts 

To review the financial management of 
Grouped Schools PFI accounts  

H 10 Management request One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

P
age 58



 

 

8 

 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Communities. Localities 
and Culture 

     

Idea Stores- Probity Audit This is a probity audit which will examine 
systems for collecting and banking of 
income, petty cash, ordering and paying 
for goods and services, inventory 
management, staffing and other financial 
matters. 

M 12 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

A Prosperous 
Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all 

Commercial Waste This audit will examine management and 
control of commercial waste to ensure 
that sound systems and procedures are 
in place.  

H 10 Audit needs analysis A Great Place to Live 

Improve the environment 
and tackle climate change 

Management and control of 
Markets  

 

This audit will review the Council’s 
arrangements for management, control 
and enforcement of street trading 
activities.   

H 15 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Horticultural contracts 
management 

To review systems and controls in place 
for managing and monitoring horticultural 
contracts.   

H 10 Audit needs analysis A Great Place to Live 

Improve the environment 
and tackle climate change 

 

 

P
age 59



 

 

9 

 
REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 

 
Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  

Days 
Source of Audit Link with Corporate 

Priorities 
   Baisakhi Mela - Contract  

Management 
This audit will examine the contract 
management arrangements for Baisakhi 
Mela. 

H 10 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

   Management of Anti -Social    
Behaviour 

 

This audit will provide assurance that 
systems for managing and controlling 
Anti-social behaviour is sound and 
secure. 

M 12 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Trading Standards Stores To review the systems and controls for 
managing the Trading Standards stores. 

H 10 Audit needs analysis 

 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Localisation of Services 
using the Hubs 

To review systems for delivering services 
from localised Hubs following the 
implementation of the localisation 
agenda. 

H 10 Audit needs analysis 

 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Grant Certification To certify a grant claim H 5 Management 
Request 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Youth Service In-housing  To review risk management and controls 
around the project. 

H 15 Management 
Request 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

P
age 60



 

 

10

 

 
REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 

 
Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  

Days 
Source of Audit Link with Corporate 

Priorities 

Tower Hamlets Homes 
     

Right to Buy This audit will examine systems of 
control for managing Right to Buy 
applications and compliance with 
appropriate legislation, regulations and 
authorisations from LBTH. 

H 10 Internal Audit needs 
analysis 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Financial Systems This audit will review the robustness of 
key financial systems such as income 
and expenditure systems, cash flow 
forecasting, Treasury Management, VAT 
and reconciliation processes, as part of 
the annual assurance on the soundness 
of financial control across THH. 

H 10 Risk Register THH-
FN0003, THH-
FN0005, Internal 
Audit needs analysis 
and External Audit 
requirement 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Document Management and 
Workflow System 

 

To advise on the robustness of the 
system across tenancy management, 
leaseholder services and HR.  

H 10 Management 
Request  

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Major Works – 
Consultation. 

This audit will examine the soundness 
and adequacy of the consultation 
systems for Major Works. 

H 10 Risk Register THH 
LS0001 and LS0002 
and Internal Audit 
needs analysis. 

A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

P
age 61



 

 

11

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Decent Homes Programme To provide assurance that the 
management of Decent Homes works 
for year 2 , is sound, secure and 
achieve the key objectives of securing 
the necessary funding.. 

H 15 Risk Register – 
DRA0009,  
THH0049 and THH-
IP0001 

A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

Water Systems and 
Installations 

To provide assurance that water 
installations are inspected, tested and 
rectified where necessary to ensure 
that the necessary statutory and H&S 
requirements are complied with. 

H 10 Internal Audit Needs 
analysis 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Empower Older and 
Vulnerable People 

 

Estate Parking  

 

This audit will seek to examine 
systems and controls for management 
and control of parking permits. 

M 12 
Internal Audit Needs 
analysis and Risk 
Register THH-CF0001 
and CF0002. 

A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

Governance of THH This audit will examine the adequacy 
and soundness of the governance 
arrangements for THH. 

H 10 
Internal Audit Needs 
analysis 

A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

Contractors Final Accounts 
Audits 

This audit will provide assurance that 
the systems and procedures in place 
for checking and auditing contractors 
final accounts for completed projects 
are sound and secure. 

M 10 
Internal Audit Needs 
analysis 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

P
age 62



 

 

12

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Aids and Adaptations This audit will examine systems for 
managing and controlling aids and 
adaptations works requisitioned by the 
LBTH Occupational Therapy service. 

M 10 
Internal Audit Needs 
analysis 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Empower Older and 
Vulnerable People 

Specialist Repairs To review budgetary control arrangements 
for specialist repairs 

H 10 Management 
Request 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Lift Renewal Programme To review systems for developing the 
programme for Lifts Renewal  

H 10 Management 
Request 

A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

Audit of a Final Account To audit Final Account H 10 Management 
Request 

A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

Follow Up Audits 

 

We will carry out follow up audits to 
ensure that recommendations made are 
progressed and implemented. 

 18   

Management Requests To service special requests from THH 
management to carry out any other high 
priority audit work. 

 10   

P
age 63



 

 

13

 

 
REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Development and 
Renewal 

     

Management and control of 
Land Charges 

This review will focus on the systems for 
managing and controlling land charges 
and the associated trading account.   

M 10 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Management of 
Mainstream Grants 

The objective is to provide assurance 
over the management and control of 
mainstream grants awarded to third 
sector organisations. 

H 15 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Procurement and 
Payments for 
Accommodation for 
Homeless 

This audit will provide assurance over 
the soundness and adequacy of the 
Council’s arrangements for placing 
homeless families in temporary 
accommodation and for making 
payments for the accommodation. 

H 12 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Recovery of Deposits 
under FRDS 

The review will examine the systems in 
place for recovering deposits under the 
family rental deposit scheme 

 

M 12 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Management and control of 
S106 Planning Obligations 

To review systems and controls for 
management and control of s.106 
Planning Obligations monies received by 
the Council. 

 

 

H 12 Audit needs analysis A Great Place to Live 

Provide affordable housing 
and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 

P
age 64



 

 

14

 

 
REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Lettings and Nominations 
Right 

This audit will examine systems and 
controls for managing Lettings to Council 
dwellings. 

H 15 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Collection and Banking of 
Planning Fees 

This review will examine systems and 
procedures for charging, collecting and 
banking income from planning fees. 

 

M 10 Directorate Risk 
Register DRP0005 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Tower Hamlets Somali 
Organisation – Inquiry and 
probity review 

 

To look into the Grant Application 
process 

H 20 Management 
Request 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) 

To carry out review of the systems 
development for the CIL 

M 10 Management 
Request 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One 

P
age 65



 

 

15

 

 
REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Archiving and Retrieval 
Contract 

This audit will provide assurance over 
the management and monitoring of the 
contract. 

H 12 Audit Needs 
Analysis 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One 

BSF – Current Contracts Building contract audits will be carried 
out on the building works at the non-
sample schools in the BSF programme 
to provide assurance that cost and 
programme controls are adequate during 
the currency of the contract.   

 

M 8 Directorate Risk 
Register BSF-
DAP0003 and 
DAP0005 and Audit 
needs analysis 

A Prosperous 
Community 

Support lifelong learning 
opportunities for all. 

 

P
age 66



 

 

16

 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing 

     

Supporting People - 
Assessments 

To review systems for assessment for 
clients eligible for the service. 

H 12 Audit Needs 
Analysis 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Empower Older and 
Vulnerable People 

Safeguarding Vulnerable 
Adults 

This audit will review the Council’s 
systems and controls for safeguarding 
vulnerable adults. 

H 12 
Directorate Risk 
Register AH0015 and 
Audit needs analysis 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Empower Older and 
Vulnerable People 

 

Statutory Review Process This audit will provide assurance over the 
arrangements for carrying out annual 
statutory review of service users needs 
and priorities. 

H 10 Directorate Risk 
Register AH001 and 
Audit needs analysis 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Empower Older and 
Vulnerable People 

Bangladeshi Parents and 
Carers Association  

To carry out probity Audit of the 
organisation. 

H 10 
Management Request 

A Safe and Supportive 
Community 

Empower Older and 
Vulnerable People 

 

 

P
age 67



 

 

17

 
 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 
 

Resources 
Reviews of key financial systems to 
provide assurance to management in 
preparing in the annual statement of 
accounts and to support the 
authority’s “managed” audit approach. 

   One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Treasury Management  H 10   

HR/Payroll   H 10   

General Ledger  M 10   

Creditors/R2P  H 15   

Debtors  M 8   

N.N.D.R.  M 8   

Council Tax   M 10   

Capital Accounting   M 8   

Cashiers   H 8   

Pensions  M 8   

Pension Fund   M 8   

Housing & Council Tax  Benefit 

Housing Rents 

 M 
M 
 

 

10 

8 

 

 

 

      

P
age 68



 

 

18

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name 
Broad Scope Priority Audit  

Days 
Source of Audit Link with Corporate 

Priorities 
 

Resources 
     

Cheque Control and Cancelled 
Cheques  

This audit will review systems for 
cheque control and cancellation and 
booking back of returned cheques. 

 

M 8 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Management of VAT This will be a review of the Council’s 
systems and controls for management 
of VAT. 

H 10 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

ICT Contract Monitoring and 
Clienting 

This review will focus on the 
arrangements in place for managing 
and monitoring the future sourcing 
contract once it has been let. 

 

H 12 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

P
age 69



 

 

19

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  

Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

 

Resources 
     

Financial Information System - 
Implementation 

This will involve internal audit in 
providing assurance over the 
implementation of the new FIS. 

H 20 Directorate Risk 
Register RSB0014 

One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Grant Claims 

 

 

 

To review systems for addressing 
issues raised by Audit Commission in 
their certification of various grant 
claims. 

M 10 Audit Needs 
Analysis 

One Tower Hamlets 

 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council. 

P
age 70



 

 

20

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  

Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate 
Priorities 

 

Resources      

Management and Control  of 
Purchase Cards 

This audit will review the 
arrangements for managing and 
controlling the issue and use of 
purchase cards. 

 

H 15 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Competitive Tendering To review the Council’s systems for 
competitive tendering for goods, 
services and works. 

H 18 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

NNDR and Council Tax refunds This will be a probity review of how 
refunds for NNDR and Council Tax 
are managed and controlled and links 
with possible money laundering. 

M 10 Audit needs analysis One Tower Hamlets 

 
Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

 

Grant Claim - Teachers  
Pensions Return 

This is an annual audit which will 
examine the deduction, processing 
and payment of teachers’ pensions 
contribution to provide assurance to 
the Audit Commission certifying the 
Grant Claim. 

M 10 Audit Commission 
requirement 

One Tower Hamlets 

 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council 

P
age 71



 

 

21

 

REVISED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN – 2012/13 
 

Audit Name Broad Scope Priority Audit  
Days 

Source of Audit Link with Corporate Priorities 
 

Information Technology Audits 

 

     

To be determined from 
operational risk analysis / 
management consultation 

A separate Computer Audit Plan will 
be devised following the review of 
the computer audit strategic plan. 
The plan will include application 
reviews encompassing the key 
financial systems. 

H 80 Audit Needs 
Analysis 

One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One Council. 

Other      

Management Requests A provision for servicing various 
management requests for advice 
and other systems development 
work. 

 15  One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One. 

 Follow Up Audits Follow-up of reviews carried out in 
10/11 to ensure implementation of 
audit recommendations 
 
 

 100  One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One 

Reactive Fraud – Balance of 
provision 

A provision for work carried out on 
investigating and reporting upon 
reported irregularities and  fraud  
 

 20  One Tower Hamlets 

Working efficiently and 
effectively as One 

Management time  
This is a provision for management 
time required to direct, control and 
monitor the work of the audit team. 
 

 50   

P
age 72



 

 

22

      APPENDIX 3 

 Governance-based Audit Assessment Methodology  

 Assessment Categories 
 The Risk Assessment model takes account four assessment categories to produce a risk index for each auditable area. The auditable area is scored in each 

category using assessment criteria to gauge the degree of risk or materiality associated with the particular area. The table below summarises the proposed 
four assessment categories and what each is intended to measure. 

Assessment Category Measure 

A Corporate Importance – Objectives/Priorities Corporate materiality 

B Corporate Sensitivity – Impact Reputational materiality 

C Inherent Risk Inherent vulnerability 

D Control Risk Control effectiveness 

 
 The full definition for each category and the scoring criteria are described below. 
 Assessment Process 
 Assessment was based on professional judgement after careful consideration of the key risks to the authority with the Executive Directors and other key 

officers, a review of current and previous audit plans and strategic issues facing the authority. The following steps were followed in performing the risk 
assessment: 

Step Action 

1 Select the System and Corporate Controls to be risk assessed, to ensure a clear and unambiguous understanding of the area under 
review. This is normally called the Auditable Area 

2 Select the most appropriate assessment criterion and therefore the score in each assessment category 

3 Record the scores. 

4 Compute the risk index by reference to the following section 

 
Calculation of the Audit Risk Index 

 
 Internal Audit risk is the product of risk and materiality. In valuing materiality it is appropriate to add the constituent assessments of Corporate Importance and 

Corporate Sensitivity to generate a Materiality Factor on a scale of 100. 
 
 Total Risk is the product of inherent and control risk. For the purposes of simplicity in this model Inherent Risk is assessed on a scale of 5-10 and Control Risk 

on a scale of 2-10. The minimum Risk Factor is produced by multiplying these components is therefore 10% (2 x 5). 
 
 The Audit Risk Index for each auditable area is, therefore, the Materiality Factor multiplied by the Risk Factor.  
 
 

P
age 73



 

 

23

  
 

Results of the Audit Risk Assessment   
 
 The structured list of auditable areas with illustrative assessment scores is recorded and the summarised scores used to give the Risk Factor and Materiality 

Factor and the resultant Audit Risk Index. 
 
 The list of auditable areas is then ranked by reference to the Audit Risk Index and grouped as high, medium or low priority. The top third are considered to be 

high priority, the next medium priority, and the bottom third low priority. 
 

P
age 74



 

 

24

Internal Audit Risk Assessment Matrices 
 
     
 
 
 
 

Score Risk to Department, Corporate and/or 
Service Objectives 

 Operational Risk Exposure  Financial Risk Exposure 

10 Negligible impact on achievement of service 
objectives. This would still be achieved with 
minimum extra cost or inconvenience. 

or Minor inconvenience or Under 2% of total operating 
income or net assets. 

20 Service objectives only partially achievable 
without compensating action being taken or 
reallocation of resources. 

or Difficult to recover or Between 2% and 10% of 
operating income or net assets. 

30 Unable to achieve service objectives without 
substantial additional costs or time delays or 
adverse effect on achievement of national 
targets / performance indicators. 

or Permanent loss of data or Between 10% and 30% of 
operating income or net assets. 

40 Unable to achieve service objectives resulting 
in significant visible impact on service provision 
such as closure of facilities. 

or Unable to restore system or Between 30% and 50% of 
operating income or net assets. 

50 Unable to achieve service objectives, resulting 
in inability to fulfil corporate obligations. 

or Organisation unable to function or Over 50% of total operating 
income or net assets 

 

A CORPORATE IMPORTANCE This aspect considers the effect on an organisation of any inability to achieve management defined 

service objectives should the system or process fail. This aspect also takes into account the financial exposure or materiality of the area. The consequential 

impact, either directly or indirectly, on other systems and processes is also relevant to the assessment. Overall it is a measure of the extent to which the 

organisation depends on the correct running of the system to achieve its strategic objectives. 

P
age 75



 

 

25

 
 Internal Audit Risk Assessment Matrices 

 
     
 
 
 

Score Risk to Public Image  Risk of Adverse Publicity  Risk to Accountability  Risk of non-legal 
Compliance 

10 Negligible consequences     or No regulatory 
requirements 

20 Some public 
embarrassment but no 
damage to reputation or 
standing in the community 

or Information would be of 
interest to local press 

  or Minimal regulatory 
requirements and 
limited sensitivity to 
non-compliance 

30 Some public 
embarrassment leading to 
limited damage 

or Information would be of 
interest to local MPs 

  or Modest legal and 
regulatory 
requirements 

40 Loss of credibility and 
public confidence in the 
service concerned 

or Incident of interest to 
National Press 

Or Incident potentially leading to 
the dismissal or resignation of 
the responsible functional 
manager 

or Extensive legal and 
regulatory 
requirements with 
sanctions for non-
compliance 

50 Highly damaging with 
immediate impact on public 
confidence 

or Incident of interest to the 
Audit Commission, 
government agencies 

Or Incident potentially leading to 
the resignation or dismissal of 
a Chief Officer 

or Possible court 
enforcement order for 
non-compliance  

 

B Corporate Sensitivity This aspect takes into account the sensitivity / confidentiality of the information processed, or service delivered by the 

system, or decisions influenced by the output. It also assesses any legal and regulatory compliance requirements. The measure should also reflect any 

management concerns and sensitivities. 

P
age 76



 

 

26

 
Internal Audit Risk Assessment Matrices 
     
 
 
 
 

Score Inherent Risk – 
Vulnerability 

 Risk of Error due to 
System Complexity 

 Risk resulting from Pace of 
Change 

 Risk to Asset Security 

5 
 
 

Low vulnerability  Simple system with low 
risk of error 

or No changes planned or Undesirable low value 
assets not at risk of 
fraud or loss 

6 Medium or low inherent 
risk 

or  or Limited changes planned with 
reasonable timescale 

  

7 Medium vulnerability or Moderately complex 
system with medium risk 
of error 

or Moderate level of change over 
medium term 

  

8 Medium to high inherent 
risk 

or  or Significant level of change with 
restricted timescale 

  

10 Highly vulnerable or Complex system with high 
risk of error 

or Extensive changes planned 
with short timescale 

or Highly desirable 
assets exposed to 
high risk of fraud or 
loss 

 

C Inherent Risk  This aspect considers the inherent risk of the system, service, process or related assets to error, loss, irregularity, inefficiency, 

illegality or failure. The particular service sector, nature of operations and the pace of change will also affect the level of inherent risk. Similarly the 

relative complexity of the system will influence the inherent risk or error. The inherent vulnerability of a system, service or process cannot be altered, only 

mitigated by the quality of controls considered in section D. 

P
age 77



 

 

27

 
Internal Audit Risk Assessment Matrices 

 
 
 

     
 
 

Score History of Risk Management Success  Management Risk and Control 
Environment 

 Condition of Risk  Management 
Controls 

2 No history of control weakness or There is effective risk management in 
place and adequate controls 
operated by risk-aware management 

or Effective controls and robust attitude 
to the management of all material 
risks. Embedded risk management 
culture 

4 No history of significant weakness or Good management risk and control 
environment 

or Stable system with history of 
reliability and controls. Risk 
management issued considered 
regularly. 

6 No high risk issues outstanding from the 
previous audit/investigation/best 
value/external review 

or No knowledge of management risk 
and control environment 

or Risk management and system 
controls not validated. 

8 Some significant problems were identified 
and are known to be outstanding from the 
previous audit/review 

or Some significant concerns have been 
expressed by management (through 
Controls Risk Workshops) 

or Technical health of system of risk 
management and controls in doubt. 

10 Major weaknesses in risk management 
and controls were identified and are 
known to be outstanding 

or Major concerns have been expressed 
by management (through Controls 
Risk workshops) 

or Obsolete system with history of 
problems and ineffective control. 
Little or no work undertaken on risk 
management. 

 

D Control Risk   This aspect assesses the level of control risk based upon the results of past audits of the control environment under 

review. This aspect also takes into account of the operating history and condition of systems and processes and knowledge of management controls to 

minimise exposure to risk. CRSA and extensive Control Risk Workshops under the leadership of the Council’s Risk Manager could support evaluation. 

P
age 78



 

 

 

 
Internal Audit Strategy 
 
Introduction 
 
What is Internal Audit? 
 
Internal Audit is a review function within an organisation. Essentially it exists to perform the following roles: 
 

l  review systems of risk management, internal control and governance to ensure that these are sound and effective. 

l  to provide an assurance opinion on the soundness of the organisation’s risk management and internal control frameworks. 

l  to add value to the organisation’s operational activities by recommending enhancements to systems and identifying potential efficiencies. 
  
Perhaps the most succinct definition of Internal Audit is provided by the Institute of Internal Auditors – UK and Ireland (IIA-UK), as follows: 
 
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation's operations. It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes. 
 
The Authority’s Internal Audit Charter defines the function of Internal Audit, with specific reference to its role within the Authority, in the following way: 
 
Internal Audit is an independent review function established as a service to Members, the Audit Committee and all levels of management. The Internal Audit Service 
is responsible for the independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and controls within systems operating within all of the Council’s 
activities. It also has a responsibility to provide assurance to management that the Authority’s risk management and corporate governance arrangements are 
satisfactory. 
 
Why do we need an Internal Audit Strategy?  
 
An Internal Audit Strategy outlines the means by which Internal Audit seeks to achieve its stated aims and objectives. The strategy is the plan for the effectively 
delivery of the Internal Audit service.  
 
This document sets out Internal Audit’s strategic approach, which should facilitate: 
 

l  on an annual basis, the provision to the S151 officer of an overall opinion on the Authority’s risk management, control and governance, to support the 

preparation of the Statement of Internal Control; 

l  audit of the Authority’ risk management, control and governance processes through periodic audit plans in a way which affords suitable priority to the 

Authority’s objectives and risks; 

P
age 79



 

 

 

l  improvement of the Authority’s risk management, control and governance by providing line management with recommendations arising from audit work; 

l  the identification of audit resources required to deliver an audit service which meets the CIPFA Code of Practice 2006 for Internal Audit in Local Government; 

l  effective co-operation with external auditors and other review bodies functioning in the Authority; and 

l  provision of assurance and consultancy services by Internal Audit. 
 
The Role and Purpose of Internal Audit 
 
The role of Internal Audit is to understand the Authority’s key risks, and to review and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of internal control, risk 
management and corporate governance that are in operation at the Council, to ensure that they are sufficient for the purposes of mitigating risk.  
 
It is a statutory requirement for Local Authorities to have an internal audit function, under S151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The Act also stipulates that Internal 
Audit should have unrestricted access to all information and records retained by the Authority. This enables Internal Audit to comprehensively review, appraise and 
report on the authority’s functions as outlined in the Audit Charter. 
 
Strategic Aims 
 
Internal Audit exists to support the Council in the achievement of its corporate objectives. In particular: 
 

l  Internal Audit will support the Authority’s aim to provide quality public services, by evaluating and reporting on the standard of systems of internal control in 

Council service areas; 

l  Internal Audit will support the Authority in working to the values set out in its corporate plan by providing the Head of Risk Management, the Director of 

Resources and the Audit Committee with reports on the extent of compliance with the Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance; 

l  Internal Audit will contribute to the delivery of the Authority’s community aims through professional audit reviews and effective recommendations for improving 

systems that support the Council’s organisational aims; 

l  Internal Audit will assist the Director of Resources in the discharge of his statutory responsibilities for ensuring the proper administration of the Authority’s 

financial affairs and will contribute to the Authority’s aim of maximising and making best use of its financial resources through: 

o Risk based reviews of financial systems; 

o Advice on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in new and developing systems; 

o Promotion of best practice across the Authority; 

o Advice on the prevention and detection of fraud affecting the Authority and investigation of waste or abuse within the Council systems. 
 
Internal Audit & Risk Management 
 
Risks are potential events or occurrences that may have an adverse effect on the organisation’s ability to achieve its objectives. Risk Management is the process of 
identifying, evaluating and responding to risks in order to mitigate them. Risk Management is not the responsibility of Internal Audit. However, Internal Audit will use 

P
age 80



 

 

 

the authority’s risk management framework to focus its work by concentrating on those areas that are most critical to the authority. Consequently, Internal Audit will 
review the authority’s risk registers on a six monthly basis and where necessary amend the internal audit plan to ensure audit resources are continually focused on 
areas identified by management where the objectives may not be achieved. 
 
Dimension 4 from the CIPFA/SOLACE report on good governance highlights Risk Management as being an integral part of good governance. Internal Audit will 
therefore also examine the authority’s risk management arrangements annually and in so doing, also fulfil the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice 2006 for 
Internal Audit in Local Government to report formally on the authority’s arrangement for Risk Management. 
 

P
age 81



 

 

 

 
Identifying Audit Coverage 
 
In order to identify the auditable systems and establish the areas of risk or specific importance within the authority, Internal Audit will adopt an approach involving 
discussion and review of the current position. Information will be gathered by meeting key officers within the authority including Corporate Directors and Finance 
Managers, the Chief Executive and other key officers within the authority. Internal Audit will also discuss the requirements of the External Auditors and the 
requirements of the “managed audit” approach to ensure those areas upon which our external auditors would seek to place reliance on the internal audit work are 
included within the internal audit programme. Details of the “Governance” Based Strategic Planning are attached to this paper for information. 
 
In compiling its work programme, Internal Audit will make use of information available within the authority to identify auditable systems, such as 
 

l  the authority’s risk registers, to ensure risks are being managed properly;  

l  background information obtained from previous audits and our discussions to date with the authority; 

l  experience of issues raised at other public sector organisations after carefully considering key risks to the authority; and 

l  current and previous audit plans and strategic issues facing the authority. 
 
For each auditable system, Internal Audit will classify the systems into one of three risk bands according the system’s significance to the authority: High (H), Medium 
(M) or Low (L). It is recognised and appreciated that Internal Audit cannot review all auditable systems within the authority each year as both financial and human 
resources are limited. Internal Audit will therefore seek to use the resources available to review those auditable systems that are most significant to the authority. 
Hence, all systems highlighted as being highly significant will always be included within the annual audit plan. A proportion of medium significance audits will also 
been included in the plan. In deciding which medium-significance auditable system to review, we will use our assessment of the system and discuss with 
management those areas that will add value. It is highly unlikely the resources will permit the inclusion of auditable units that are of low significance to the authority 
and therefore these auditable units will feature on the Internal Audit plan unless specifically requested by management.   
 

P
age 82



 

 

 

Delivering the Strategy 
 
The strategic internal audit plan will be compiled annually for each financial year and only comprise those systems due for review in that year. The strategic plan will 
therefore relate to one financial year and be subject to a formal six monthly review.  
 
Internal audit will primary perform risk based audits, all exceptions to this will require prior agreement from the Head of Risk Management. The risk based approach 
entails examining the objective of the auditable system, the risks relating to the delivery of those objectives and an assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the control framework to achieve the desired objectives. 
 
Audit Reporting 
 
The reporting arrangements for Internal Audit are detailed in the Internal Audit Charter under “Reporting”.  
 
Quality 
 
All internal audit work will be subject to rigorous review and quality assurance procedures. This will entail:- 
 

l  planning the scope of the audit to ensure focus on areas of risks and concerns; 

l  supervision of audit work by the Audit Managers; 

l  a formal review and sign off of the audit report and audit file by the Audit Managers; 

l  obtaining feedback and comments from the auditees and Directors; 

l  seeking feedback from the external auditors; and  

l  bench marking Internal Audit quality control procedures with other similar organisations. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 83



 

 

 

       The Internal Audit Process 
 

The Pre-Audit Stage  
 

Based on the audit timetable, which has previously been agreed, Internal Audit Team will give two weeks notice to the appropriate Corporate 
Director and Service Head (the Audit Owner) of an impending audit review and issue an Audit Brief. The Audit Brief will also detail how the audit 
relates to the agreed audit plan. The Audit Owner has an opportunity to comment on the Audit Brief and raise any areas of concern. 
 
The Audit Owner will ensure that Internal Audit is provided with a written agreement or otherwise to the Audit Brief within two weeks following the 
receipt of the draft by the Audit Owner.   
 

During the Audit 
 

At this stage Internal Audit will keep the Auditee informed of key findings found during the course of the audit. Where an officer has not been able 
to provide information requested, Internal Audit will refer matters to the Audit Owner. 

 
The Auditee will ensure that the auditor is provided with all the resources and facilities, including information requested, to facilitate the smooth 
progress of the audit, including responding to any auditor enquiries promptly. 
 

Post Audit Stage 
 

Upon conclusion of the audit field work Internal Audit will present a Draft Audit Report to be discussed at the audit exit meeting with the Audit 
Owner. At the audit exit meeting, the findings will be discussed, along with any recommendations for improvement. 

 
Following the audit exit meeting, LB Tower Hamlets Internal Audit will issue a formal Draft of the Audit Report which includes a Management 
Action Plan of Recommendations to the Audit Owner within three weeks following the completion of the audit exit meeting.  
 
The Audit Owner has three weeks to respond to the Draft Audit Report by completing the Management Action Plan of Recommendations, 
including listing responsible officers and proposed completion dates.  Upon receipt of the agreed Action Plan, a Final Report will be issued to all 
parties concerned. 
 
The Audit Owner will then enter the agreed management actions and target dates into the Audit Tracker System, and monitor the progress in 
implementing the recommendations. 

 
The LB Tower Hamlets Internal Audit will present a Summary of Findings from recently issued Final Audit Reports to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Owner will have the opportunity to add a response to the Summary of Findings before this report is presented to the Audit Committee. 

P
age 84



 

 

 

             The Monitoring Process 
 

 
Follow-up audits will be conducted six months after the issue of the Final Report, and a follow up audit report will be issued showing the 
progress on implementing the agreed recommendations. 
 
Internal Audit recommendations are classified as follows: 
 
Category 1 – High Priority - 100% of recommendations to be implemented within six months 
Category 2 – Medium Priority – 95% of recommendations to be implemented within six months 

 
 
 
 

P
age 85



 

 

 

 Summary 
 
 
 

Internal Audit: Will provide assurance that risk 
management processes and internal controls are 
operating effectively, ensure major business risks 
are being managed effectively, and that 
governance arrangements are operating effectively. 
 
Control Framework:  A matrix of control 
mechanisms will be developed to ensure that every 
member of staff is aware of their responsibility in 
managing risk, and a reporting framework will 
ensure that the Senior Management Team and the 
Board have a clear view of the effectiveness of the 
controls in place. 
 
Risk Management: The Risk Register will be 
reviewed on a periodic basis to reassess the 
residual level of risk for the strategic risks identified 
in the first year of operation; new risks added as 
they become evident. 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
R

is
k

s

Professional

Financial

Business Planning

Legal

Physical

Contractual

Technological

S
tra

te
g

ic R
isk

s

Political

Economic

Social

Technological

Legislative

Environmental

Competitive

Customer/Citizen

Control Framework

Organisational

Structure

Span of

Control

Roles and

Responsibilities

Clear Written

Instructions

Clear Lines

of Reporting

to Executive

and Board

Disciplinary

Arrangements

Internal Audit

Review of Control Processes Review of VFM Objectives Review of  Management Information

and control systems

Residual

Risk

Risk

Management

P
age 86



 

 

 

Risk Management Framework 
 

 
Definitions 

 

Risk “Any issue which could impact on an organisation’s ability to meet its objectives” 

 

Risk Management Risk management is a planned and systematic approach to the identification, analysis and control of risks that challenge and 
threaten the achievement of the objectives of the organisation. Risk management makes it possible to determine whether the risks pose a large 
enough threat and the innovations a big enough opportunity, to implement mitigation techniques. 

 

Objective Is to implement an effective risk management framework that ensures that risks are identified and managed to an acceptable level and 
that opportunities are fully exploited, whilst minimising, financial loss, service disruption, bad publicity, reputation loss, claims for compensation 
and threats to the public and staff. 

 
Our Policy: We believe that by managing risks effectively, we at LB of Tower Hamlets will be in a stronger position to deliver our strategic and 
operational objectives. By taking advantage of opportunities and managing them well, we will be in a better position to improve services and give 
our stakeholders better value for money. 

P
age 87



 

 

 

Objectives of Risk Management: 

 

• Ensure that systems are in place to identify, track and report upon existing and emerging risks that could damage the interest of our business 

and our stakeholders. 

• Ensure that risk management is embedded throughout the organisation, creating an environment where all staff assumes responsibility for 

managing risk.  

 
 

These Objectives will be Achieved by:  

 

• Establishing clear roles, responsibilities and reporting lines within the organisation for risk management; 

• Providing opportunities for shared learning on risk management across the organisation; 

• Developing and maintaining systems for identifying and evaluating all significant risks; 

• Developing and maintaining a framework for allocating resources to identified priority risk areas; 

• Reinforcing the importance of effective risk management as part of the everyday work of employees by offering training; 

• Incorporating risk management considerations into Best Value and service reviews and business planning; 

• Put in place review and monitoring arrangements to assess the effectiveness of our mechanisms and arrangements. 

 

To Emphasise the Organisation’s Working Commitment to Risk Management, the Risk Management Mission Statement is as Follows: 

 

“London Borough of Tower Hamlets recognises that it has a responsibility to manage opportunities and risks in a structured manner in order that 
LB Tower Hamlets will better achieve its corporate objectives and enhance the value of services it provides to the Community”. 

 

The Audit Committee, Corporate Management Team (CMT) and the Directorate Management Team (DMT) will have overall responsibility for risk 
management and will be consulted and kept informed as to the progress of the implementation of the strategy on at least an annual basis. 

P
age 88



 

 

 

Roles and Responsibilities 

 

Audit Committee 

The Committee’s primary role is to review and conclude upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
overall internal control system.  In performing this role the Committee’s work predominantly focuses upon the 
framework of risks, controls and related assurances that underpin the delivery of the Council’s objectives. 
 

Corporate Management 
Team 

.  

One of the roles of the Audit Committee is to work on a cross-directorate basis to ensure that the Council has an 
effective risk management arrangement in place to achieve its objectives and to consider quarterly reports on the 
key strategic risks faced by the Council and how these risks are being managed and mitigated.    
 

Corporate Director of 
Resources 

As S.151 officer, the Corporate Director of Resources is responsible for the proper administration of the financial 
affairs of the Council.  The requirement to have an Internal Audit function derives from S.151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972  As such the Corporate Director of Resources supports the Council and its departments 
in ensuring that the arrangements made for financial management, risk management and internal control 
systems are sound and secure. 

 

 

Corporate 

Directors 

 

The Corporate Directors have the operational responsibility for ensuring that there are sound procedures in place 
at Directorate level for effective financial management, risk management and internal control systems. 
 

 
 
Risk Management Action Plans 

 

One of the key risk management objectives is the effective management of the organisation’s risks, both strategic and operational. This has 
been achieved by the sessions to identify and profile the organisation’s significant strategic risks. 

 

Once this task has been compiled, SMT and the Audit Committee will be asked to comment on these risks and the risk assessment process. In 
relation to the operational risks, each Director has facilitated and co-ordinated a similar risk assessment exercise in order that the significant 
operational risks have been accurately identified profiled and managed. The aim of such a process is that it will eventually form part of each 
Division’s annual business planning process. 

 

P
age 89



 

 

 

Coming out of this process, will be risk management action plans relating to the most serious significant risks, i.e. those where the existing 
levels of internal control are seen as inadequate. The above assessments (both strategic and operational) will be a yearly process with tracking 
and monitoring of risks on an annual basis. 

 

The Director of Resources will receive copies of each Division’s operational risk management action plans in order that any cross-departmental 
risks can be picked up and managed accordingly. The Director of Resources will also monitor the risk improvement strategy to ensure that 
progress is made against the key significant risks. 

 

Similarly, the same risk assessment programme can be adopted when services are going through the Best Value programme. A risk 
management pack can be included in the Best Value documentation. It is generally accepted that each Directorate must be seen to be 
managing its risks in order to demonstrate Best Value. 

P
age 90



 

 

 

 
Classification of Risk 

Strategic Risks Operational Risks 

Political    

Wrong strategic priorities  

Not meeting Government agendas 

Too slow to innovate/modernise 

Decisions based on incomplete 
information 

Unfulfilled promises to Council 

Failure to recruit a suitable CEO 

Economic 

General economic problems 

Regional economic problems 

Treasury risk 

Missed business or service 
opportunities 

Professional 

Failure to recruit/retain staff 

Lack of training 

Over-reliance on key officers 

Inefficient management processes 

Inability to implement change 

Lack of employee motivation 

Bad management of partners 

Financial and business 
planning 

Failure of major project(s) 

Failure to prioritise, allocate 
appropriate budgets and monitor 

Failure to implement effective 
partnering contracts for property 
and estate services 

Social 

Failing to meet the needs of 
disadvantaged 

Impact of demographic changes 

Employment challenges 

Lack of development of staff  

Failures in partnership working 

Technological 

Obsolescence of technology 

Security policies 

Breach of confidentiality 

Failure in communications 

 

Legal 

Not meeting statutory duties 

Breach of confidentiality/DPA 

Failure to comply with European 
Directives on procurement of 
works, supplies, and services 

Failure to implement new 
legislation 

Physical 

Attacks on personnel 

Loss of tangible assets 

Non compliance with health & 
safety law 

Loss of physical assets 

Local and national emergencies 

Legislative 

Judicial review 

Human Rights Act breaches 

Intervention by regulatory bodies 

Inadequate response to new 
legislation 

Poor response to Audit Commission 

Environmental 

Impact of sustainability policies 

Noise, contamination and 
pollution 

 

Contractual 

Over-reliance on key 
suppliers/contractors 

Failure of outsource provider 

Quality issues 

Non-compliance with procurement 
policies 

Technological 

Failure of big technology project 

IT system crashes affect services 

Breaches of security of network 
and data 

Bad management of intranets 
and websites 

Competitive 

Failure to show best value; Failure 
of bids for government funds 

Customer/Citizen 

Lack of appropriate consultation 

Bad public and media relations 

  

P
age 91



 

 

 

 

P
age 92



Page 1 

 

 
REPORT TO: 

 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

 
14thJanuary 2013 

CLASSIFICATION 

 
Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF: 

Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 

 
Head of Risk Management and Audit 

 
Risk Management Annual Report 2012 
 

Ward(s) Affected: N/A 
 

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
  
1.0 The Audit Committee’s terms of reference includes as one its functions “to review the 

Risk Management arrangements of the Authority”.  This report is designed to assist the 
Committee in the exercise of this function. 
 
The purpose is to provide the Committee with: 
 

a) An oversight of the authority’s processes to facilitate the identification and 
management of significant business risks.  

 
b) Summary of the current Corporate Risk Register and 

 
c) Risk Management Team activity over the last 12 months and future actions. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 

 
 That the Audit Committee is asked to note to contents of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of 

holder 
And address where open to 
inspection 

None  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 93



Page 2 

 
 
 

3.0 Background 
 

3.1 All organisations face risks in everything that they do but by the proper management of 
its risks, organisations can benefit by reducing their significance; either by reducing the 
level of impact, or making the risk less likely to happen. In recent years there have 
been a number of high profile events that have led to improved Risk Management and 
corporate governance arrangements in the private and public sectors. Such events and 
incidents include child abuse cases, fraud, failing schools, major project and 
procurement failures, arson in public buildings etc.  
 

3.2 These events have led to the recognition of the importance of Risk Management and 
its place within the internal controls of a public body and its contribution to the delivery 
of successful service outcomes. 

3,4 There is a legal requirement i.e. (The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011) which 
require a system to be in place to identify and manage risks in public bodies. In 
addition public bodies have to comply with corporate governance regulations and 
codes. This is demonstrated in guidance issued by CIPFA / SOLACE, “Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government”, which makes reference to the need for effective 
management of risks and suggest how authorities can use audit committees to support 
a framework for effective systems of internal control. 
 

3.5 Over the last few years, the use of Risk Management to assist effective decision 
making in the public sector has gained strength as the appreciation of how it can be 
used as a technique for delivering an efficient and effective service to all its 
stakeholders. 
 

4.0 Corporate Risk Management Process 
 

4.1 The approach to managing risk is outlined in the Council’s Risk Management Policy 
Statement which encourages innovation and creative approaches to service delivery 
whilst requiring careful consideration of the risks involved and taking appropriate 
measures to manage them. The Corporate Risk Management Process is aimed at 
identifying, assessing, prioritising and mitigating the significant risks that could impact 
on the delivery of the Council’s objectives (i.e. corporate risks). This process is aligned 
with the Council’s priorities.  
 

4.2 Corporate risks are those concerned with ensuring overall success of 
corporate/strategic objectives as well as the vitality and viability of the Council. 
Materialisation of such risks would be perceivable by elected members and other 
stakeholders/partners including the public and will affect the reputation of the Council, 
amongst other significant consequences. Guidance has been produced to help Risk 
Champions identify such corporate risks from their directorate level assessment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



Page 3 

4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The methodology involves designated senior directorate managers (known as Risk 
Champions), in liaison with their directorate DMTs, identifying risks which should be 
regarded as being ‘corporate’. Risk Champions meet monthly to review and moderate 
the identified risks and the associated mitigating action. Once reviewed these risks 
form part of the monthly risk report to CMT and MAB.  
 
The directorate Risk Champions are: 
 
 Chief Execs/Resources  Head of Audit and Risk Management 
 Adults, Health and Wellbeing  Interim Head of Finance 
 Children, Schools and Families  Head of Programme Office 
 Communities, Localities  
 and Culture  

Finance and Resources Manager 

Development and Renewal  Head of Programme & Business 
Assurance 

 
 

5.0 Corporate Risk Register 
 

5.1 The Corporate Risk Register consists of the most significant risks to the Council’s 
objectives, identified by directorates and moderated by the Risk Champions Group. 
Corporate risks tend to be risks which are in the medium to long term e.g. failure to 
meet decent homes target but also may be more short term such as risks to Council 
services due to the Olympics.  
 

5.2 As the table below shows the number of corporate risks reduced from January 2012, 
when there were 19 to a current figure of 12.The number of risks has been in the range 
of 14 - 12 since April. Some risks have been de- escalated to directorate level following 
successful mitigation to a lower level of risk exposure whilst others have been removed 
from the register as the risk event has passed (i.e. there is no longer a risk). 
 
 
 
 

5.3 Chart 1: Monthly totals of Corporate Red and Amber Risk since January 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



Page 4 

 
 
 

5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tables 1 and 2 below analyse the 12 corporate risks on the basis of corporate 
priorities by directorate. There are no corporate risks identified for the Safer and 
Supportive Community priority.  
 
Table 1: Number of risks by corporate priority theme: 
 
Corporate Priority/Theme Red Amber 

A Great Place to Live 4 0 

A Prosperous Community 1 3 

A Safe and Supportive Community 0 0 

A Healthy Community 0 1 

One Tower Hamlets 0 3 

Total 5 7 
 

5.5 Table 2:  Number of risks by directorate (Red and Amber): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There are no corporate risks identified by CLC. 
 
 
 

Directorate Red Amber 
Adults, Health and Well 
being 

0 1 

Chief Execs 0 3 
Children, Schools and 
Families (CSF) 

1 0 

Communities, Localities 
and Culture (CLC) 

0 0 

Resources  1 3 
Development and 
Renewal (D&R) 

3 0 

Total 5 7 

5.6 Out of the 12 corporate risks there are five Red risks and details of these are set out 
below. (Note: Some risk descriptions have been summarised).  
 
Red risks attract a score of between 8 and 16 (max). The risk scoring system can be 
seen in appendix 1. 
 
Score 16 (Two risks) 
 
CSE00010 - Insufficient capacity (assets, land and funding) to meet local need for 
schools places.  
 
DRDH0001 – Reduction in affordable private sector accommodation. 
 
Score  9 (One risk) 
 
RS0039 – Risk that additional savings are required to respond to major variances in 
financial planning assumptions. 

Page 96



Page 5 

 
Score  8 ( Two risks) 
 
DRA0009 – Failure to deliver Decent Homes by 2016. 
 
DRA0012 – Unable to deliver the Mayor’s target level of affordable housing. 
 
 

5.7 There are seven Amber risks. Amber risks are those which have a risk score of 
between 4 and 6. See appendix 1 for the risk scoring system. 
 
The  six Amber risks are set out below: 
 
Score 6 (six risks) 
 
AH 0025 - A shortfall in the level of supported housing available to the service 
 
CEAC0004 – Publication or broadcast of content that presents reputational risk to the 
Council.  
 
HR 0005 - There is a risk that the Council will fail to develop and implement a work 
force plan that effectively meets its strategic and operational needs over the next 5 to 
10 years – across all services. 
 
RS0038 - The approved savings programme for 2012-13 to 2014/15 may not be 
delivered either in full or to the original timescales. 
 
S&P 0006 - Impact of welfare reform on local residents 
 
TP – SW0015 - Failure to vacate and surrender Anchorage House lease on time.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.0 Risk Management Activity  
 

6.1 The following paragraphs detail some of the recent activity by the Risk Management 
team in helping to promote and embed Risk Management within the Council.  
 

 a) Zurich Municipal (ZM) – Risk Management Review  
 

 The Risk Management team commissioned Zurich Municipal Risk Engineering (The 
Risk Management consultancy arm of the Insurance company) to undertake review of 
the Council’s Risk Management arrangements.  
 
The consultant reviewed of the Council’s Risk Management policy and guidance, 
interviewed senior officers, Risk Champions and two elected members (Chair of Audit 
Committee and Lead Member for Resources) and an online survey of over 150 
managers was also conducted. ZM produced a report, which included the survey 
results, and presented their findings and recommendations to theRisk Champions 
Group.  
 
The report lays the foundation for a Risk Management Improvement Plan (see 7.0 
below). 
 

  

Page 97



Page 6 

b) Promotion, Communication and Training 
 

 Risk Talks 
 

 A programme of short one hour talks, led by external and/or internal speakers, on 
matters of topic interest in relation to Risk Management has been implemented. The 
programme commenced in June 2012 and is aimed at managers and other specialist 
staff.  
 
The first Risk Talk was presented by the National Audit Office on Initiating Successful 
projects. Since then talks have taken place on how global events cause risks at 
national and local levels e.g. climate change as well as managing reputation risk and 
effective Health and Safety management.  
 
There has been an excellent attendance ranging from about 35 to over 60 for the 
managing reputation risk talk. Two more Talks are taking place this year on managing 
digital Risks and a legal summary of insurance cases. Articles based upon these Talks 
have been produced for inclusion in TH Now to disseminate the key risk messages 
within the Council and provide publicity for these events. 
 

 Risk Management training 
 

 Regular half day Risk Management training sessions have been held every couple of 
months. The training session includes an overview of the Council’s Risk Management 
process as well as opportunities for delegates to participate in a Risk Management 
exercise. Whilst delegate feedback has been positive the numbers of attending have 
varied and on occasions sessions have had to be rearranged. These sessions are 
currently on hold pending a review to of the training content but will re-commence from 
January 2013. 
 
The Risk Management team have been piloting a new training package which has 
been well received. A decision whether to use the new package has yet to be made. 
 
Risk Management training will continue to be provided but will need to be targeted 
more specifically at managers and other special areas e.g. project managers.  
 

 TH Net – Risk Management content 
 

 The Risk Management pages on TH Net, (intranet) have been reorganised and new 
content added including a set of generic risk assessments as well as guidance in the 
use of the Council’s Risk Management information system (JCAD). 
 

 Risk Management Screen Saver 
 

 A screen saver, containing important Risk Management messages -Think RISK, 
Deliver RESULTS  –(see appendix 2 to see views of the screen savers), was designed 
and published on all the Council PCs and laptops in February and are continuing.  The 
purpose of the screen saver was to raise awareness of the benefits of effective Risk 
Management across the organisation as well as the information available on TH Net. It 
also linked in with an article in TH Now about the Risk Management process and its 
importance for successful service delivery. 
 

 Risk Management information System 
 

 The Council uses a Risk Management Information System, known as JCAD, to record 
risk and control information and produce management information reports. These 
reports are used to report risk information to CMT and MAB. The system is used to 
record corporate, directorate and service risks as well as some projects. Earlier this 
year the Council moved a new hosted service providing improved access and speed as 
well as greater reliability.   

Page 98



Page 7 

 
 Provision of Advice and Guidance 

 
 The Risk Management team are currently providing a range of advice and guidance to 

services including, for example, the introduction of a systematic Risk Management 
scheme within CLC Public Realm. This has involved producing a Risk Management 
protocol, training of staff in the concepts of business Risk Management and 
undertaking training staff to use JCAD. This work in on going. 
 

7.0 
 

Risk Management Improvement Plan 
 

 The ZM report highlighted the good progress made by the Council in developing and 
embedding its Risk Management arrangements and also set out a number of 
recommendations for further developing and embedding these. In doing so it set out 
areas that the Council might seek to improve on, in order to ensure that Risk 
Management is a practical and useful tool which supported the achievement of the 
Council’s strategic objectives. 
 
The key recommendations focused on: 
 

• Improving the corporate risk identification process and the regularity of risk 
reporting 

 

• Reviewing and revising Risk Management guidance documents 
 

• Reviewing and improving  existing training for managers and members 
 

• Expanding the use of JCAD to include corporately significant programmes and 
projects 

 

• Support for Risk Champions and  management of the Risk Management group  
 

• A range of minor technical changes to the process including changing the risk 
matrix to allow greater flexibility in scoring risks 

 
The ZM report’s recommendations have been accepted by Risk Champions. A Risk 
Management Improvement Plan (RMIP) based upon the recommendations report will 
be submitted to CMT in November/December based upon the ZM report. 

 

8.0      Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

The report sets out the main corporate risks facing the organisation and the      
actions that are being taken to improve the management of risk in the 
authority. Whilst the number of red and amber risks has declined over the 
course of the year, the scope and scale of the remaining risks has not 
diminished, and if anything there is a sense that they have increased. For 
example, the Chancellor of the Exchequer’s recent announcement that 
austerity will persist into 2017/18 means that financial risks are likely to 
become more difficult to manage over time. It is intended to prioritise a 
thorough review of corporate strategic risks in the new year to ensure they 
continue to reflect the more serious and pressing issues facing the 
authority.  

 
9.0       Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Service) 
 

The council is required under the Account and Audit regulations 2011 to 
have a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 

Page 99



Page 8 

exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the 
management of risks. The maintenance and considerations about risk, such 
as is provided in the report, is part of the way in which the Council fulfils this 
duty.  

 
10.      One Tower Hamlets Considerations 
  

There are no specific Equal Opportunities issues arising from this report. 
Sound risk management is one way in which the Council ensure that it 
discharges its functions in accordance with its expressed objectives, 
including those set out in the community Plan, and that it does so in 
accordance with statutory requirements. 

 
11.     Anti-Poverty Considerations 
  
       There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report.  

 
12.     Risk Management Implications  
 
 The revised control environment should pick up areas identified as of concern 

and reduce the residual risk. 
 
13.   Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 
      There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



Page 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets – Risk Scoring Matrix 

Appendix 1 

What is a risk? 
• A risk can be defined as “an event or set of events that could impact on the achievement of objectives”  
• A risk should be assessed against an objective. 
• A risk is measured in terms of likelihood and impact. (see Tables below) 
• It is important to note that if the likelihood of the event occurring is less than 100%, i.e. it is not a certainty  
• A risk may never 100% mitigated, but its risk score may reduce to an acceptable level 
• A risk can be dealt with in 4 ways –  Treat (mitigate), Tolerate (accept), Transfer to a third party or Terminate (avoid). 

How to use the Risk Scoring Matrix 
To assess a risk , first consider the likelihood of that risk occurring. Consult the Likelihood Classification 
Table below and choose the most appropriate description e.g. Moderate, which has a score of 2. Next, 
consider the impact of that risk occurring using the Impact Classification Table. There may be several 
impacts of a risk e.g. service disruption and financial loss, choose the highest rated impact e.g. High which 
has a score of 3. It is essential to take into account, when scoring, any existing measures that either 
reduce the likelihood or/and impact of the risk occurring. Using the Risk Matrix below a likelihood score of 
Moderate (2) and an Impact of High(3) gives a risk score of 6 (Amber). The Risk Definition table indicates 
the meaning of that score in terms of management action required. 

Likelihood Classification 

Score Likelihood Description  

4 Extremely Likely Expected to occur in most circumstances (>75%) 

3 Likely Will probably occur in most circumstances (51% - 75%) 

2 Moderate Fairly likely to occur (26% - 50%) 

1 Remote May occur only in only exceptional circumstances (<25%) 

 

Impact Classification 
Impact Type

Impact

description

Service disruption Financial Loss Reputation Performance Health and Safety

Extreme (4) Total failure of service for a 

significant period

Financial loss in 

excess of £1,000,000

Government intervention 

in running of services and 

adverse national media 

coverage

Failure to achieve a 

strategic theme or major 

corporate objective in the 

Council’s strategic plan

Fatality of employee. 

Service user or other 

stakeholder

High (3) Significant service 

disruption

Financial Loss in 

excess of £500,000

Adverse national media 

coverage

Failure to achieve one or 

more strategic plan 

objectives

Serious injury/permanent 

disablement of one or 

more employees/service 

users

Medium (2) Disruption to service Financial loss in 

excess of £100,000

Adverse local media 

coverage/significant 

service-user complaints

Failure to achieve a service 

plan objective

Injury to staff resulting in 

loss of working time

Low (1) Some minor impact on 

service

Financial loss under 

£100,000

Isolated to service user 

complaints

Failure to achieve a team 

plan objective

Minor injury to one or 

more staff/ service users

Risk Matrix 

Extremely 

likely (4) 
4 8 

12 16 

Likely (3) 3 6 9 12 

Moderate 

(2) 

2 4 6 8 

Remote (1) 
1 2 3 4 

 

 Low 

(1) 
Medium 

(2) 
High 

(3) 
Extreme 

(4) 

Impact 

 

Risk Score definitions 

RED (High)

(Score 8 -16)

Red (High) indicates the risk is very 

significant and requires immediate 

comprehensive management 

attention. 

AMBER 

(Medium) 

(Score 4-6)

Amber (Medium) indicates that the

consequences of a risk materialising 

would be significant, but not 

disastrous. Some immediate action 

(but not as time critical) is required 

plus the development of a 

comprehensive action plan 

GREEN

(Low)

Score 1 -3)

Green (Low) indicates the likelihood 

and impact of the risk relatively 

unimportant. 

 

Page 101



Page 10 

 
Annual Risk Management Report 2012 – Screen Savers 

  Appendix 2 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 102



Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets – Risk Scoring Matrix 

APPENDIX 1 

What is a risk? 
• A risk can be defined as “an event or set of events that could impact on the achievement of objectives”  
• A risk should be assessed against an objective. 
• A risk is measured in terms of likelihood and impact. (see Tables below) 
• It is important to note that if the likelihood of the event occurring is less than 100%, i.e. it is not a certainty  
• A risk may never 100% mitigated, but its risk score may reduce to an acceptable level 
• A risk can be dealt with in 4 ways –  Treat (mitigate), Tolerate (accept), Transfer to a third party or Terminate (avoid). 

How to use the Risk Scoring Matrix 
To assess a risk , first consider the likelihood of that risk occurring. Consult the Likelihood Classification 
Table below and choose the most appropriate description e.g. Moderate, which has a score of 2. Next, 
consider the impact of that risk occurring using the Impact Classification Table. There may be several 
impacts of a risk e.g. service disruption and financial loss, choose the highest rated impact e.g. High which 
has a score of 3. It is essential to take into account, when scoring, any existing measures that either 
reduce the likelihood or/and impact of the risk occurring. Using the Risk Matrix below a likelihood score of 
Moderate (2) and an Impact of High(3) gives a risk score of 6 (Amber). The Risk Definition table indicates 
the meaning of that score in terms of management action required. 

Likelihood Classification 

Score Likelihood Description  

4 Extremely Likely Expected to occur in most circumstances (>75%) 

3 Likely Will probably occur in most circumstances (51% - 75%) 

2 Moderate Fairly likely to occur (26% - 50%) 

1 Remote May occur only in only exceptional circumstances (<25%) 

 

Impact Classification 
Impact Type

Impact

description

Service disruption Financial Loss Reputation Performance Health and Safety

Extreme (4) Total failure of service for a 

significant period

Financial loss in 

excess of £1,000,000

Government intervention 

in running of services and 

adverse national media 

coverage

Failure to achieve a 

strategic theme or major 

corporate objective in the 

Council’s strategic plan

Fatality of employee. 

Service user or other 

stakeholder

High (3) Significant service 

disruption

Financial Loss in 

excess of £500,000

Adverse national media 

coverage

Failure to achieve one or 

more strategic plan 

objectives

Serious injury/permanent 

disablement of one or 

more employees/service 

users

Medium (2) Disruption to service Financial loss in 

excess of £100,000

Adverse local media 

coverage/significant 

service-user complaints

Failure to achieve a service 

plan objective

Injury to staff resulting in 

loss of working time

Low (1) Some minor impact on 

service

Financial loss under 

£100,000

Isolated to service user 

complaints

Failure to achieve a team 

plan objective

Minor injury to one or 

more staff/ service users

Risk Matrix 

Extremely 

likely (4) 
4 8 

12 16 

Likely (3) 3 6 9 12 

Moderate 

(2) 

2 4 6 8 

Remote (1) 
1 2 3 4 

 

 Low 

(1) 
Medium 

(2) 
High 

(3) 
Extreme 

(4) 

Impact 

 

Risk Score definitions 

RED (High)

(Score 8 -16)

Red (High) indicates the risk is very 

significant and requires immediate 

comprehensive management 

attention. 

AMBER 

(Medium) 

(Score 4-6)

Amber (Medium) indicates that the

consequences of a risk materialising 

would be significant, but not 

disastrous. Some immediate action 

(but not as time critical) is required 

plus the development of a 

comprehensive action plan 

GREEN

(Low)

Score 1 -3)

Green (Low) indicates the likelihood 

and impact of the risk relatively 

unimportant. 

 

Page 103



Page 2 

 
 

Annual Risk Management Report 2012 – Screen Savers 

  APPENDIX 2 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 104



 

REPORT TO: 

 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

 
14thJanuary 2013 

CLASSIFICATION 

 
Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 
REPORT OF: 

 

Corporate Director, Resources  
 

ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Risk Management and Audit 
 

 

Annual Internal Audit Report for 
Schools – 2011/12 
 

Ward(s) Affected:  
 

N/A 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report (attached) summarises the work of Internal Audit in relation 

to the audit of schools for the financial year 2011/12. 
 

1.2. The purpose of the report is to provide an overview of audit findings and 
facilitate a thematic assessment of the matters raised by Audit. It is 
envisaged that this assessment will be used by the Children’s, Schools 
and Families school team to enhance the governance framework at 
schools. 

 

1.3. During the financial year, audit visits were carried out to 23 schools 
including one at the specific request of senior management. Each audit 
visit with the exception of the one requested by management, involved 
compliance testing of system and procedures in 12 areas of control in 
accordance with a pre-agreed audit test programme.     
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to 

take account of the matters raised by Audit in each of the 12 areas 
examined. The Audit Committee is further invited to seek assurance 
over the done by the Children’s, Schools and Families School team in 
relation to matters raised by the work of Internal Audit in relation to the 
Schools.  

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 
 
 

  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.4

Page 105



 

3. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
3.1 Any financial implications arising from this report are contained within 

the body of the report. 

 

4. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 

Services) 

 

4.1. The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 to 
maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control.  Under the 
Council’s Constitution, the Audit Committee is given the function of 
reviewing internal audit findings. 

 

5. One Tower Hamlets 
 

5.1 The issues raised in the Annual Report have been reported to the 
Corporate Director, Children, Schools and Families who has put 
necessary arrangements in place to ensure that the standard of 
financial management and control is improved and monitored across all 
the schools in the Council.   

 

6. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
 

6.1  There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 

7. Risk Management Implications  
 
7.1. The risks involved in each of the control area reviewed by audit are 

incorporated within the body of the Annual Report.  
 

8. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
 

8.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Page 106



 

 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 
TO 

CORPORATE DIRECTOR – CHILDREN, SCHOOLS AND FAMILIES 
ON 

STANDARDS OF INTERNAL CONTROL FOR SCHOOLS AUDITED 
DURING 2011/12 

 
 
 

Page 107



 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 

          PAGE 
 
INTRODUCTION        1-2 
 
MOST COMMON FINDINGS      2-3 
 
FINDINGS BY AUDIT AREA      3-8 
 
CONCLUSIONS           8 
 
APPENDIX A – BREAKDOWN OF ASSURANCE OPINIONS 
 
APPENDIX B – KEY ISSUES TRENDS  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



1 
 

REPORT ON STANDARD OF INTERNAL CONTROL FOR SCHOOLS 
AUDITED DURING 2011/12 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. This report summarises key audit findings and conclusions made 

during the conduct of school probity audits during the financial year 
2011/12.  

 
1.2. The objective of this report is to provide assurance to the Corporate 

Director as to whether the Head Teachers and Governing Bodies have 
implemented adequate and effective internal controls over the 
administration and financial monitoring of the Borough’s schools. 
 

1.3. During the 2011/12 financial year, Internal Audit carried out probity 
audit visits to 20 primary schools, one junior school and two secondary 
schools (one of which was an announced audit).  An audit programme 
which incorporates the guidance issued by the Audit Commission in 
'Keeping your Balance' is followed in undertaking schools audits.  A 
probity audit based methodology is used which involves assessing the 
school against the identified controls documented within the audit test 
programme devised for the London Borough of Tower Hamlets. The 
audit process involves audit testing, evaluating and reporting upon key 
financial and management controls.   

 
1.4. The 12 control areas examined during the audit are:- 
 

• Operation of Governance Processes; 

• Financial Planning and Budgetary Control; 

• Control and Monitoring of Schools Bank Account; 

• Procurement, including Large Single Purchases, Tendering and 
Value for Money; 

• Accounting of Income and Expenditure; 

• Charging Policy, Income Collection and Banking; 

• Personnel and Payroll Management; 

• School Meals; 

• Voluntary Fund and School Journey; 

• Asset Controls and Security of Assets; 

• Security of the IT Infrastructure, Disaster Recovery and Data 
Protection; and  

• Risk Management and Insurance. 
 
 
1.5. As a result of the 23 probity audits undertaken in 2011/12, 15 schools 

were assigned a Substantial Assurance opinion, seven schools 
assigned a Limited Assurance opinion and one school assigned a No 
Assurance opinion.  
 

Page 109



2 
 

1.6 Appendix A provides a breakdown of assurance opinions covering the 
period 2009/10 to 201/12 for comparison purposes, whilst appendix B 
provides an analysis of key issues identified. Full details of the issues 
are included in the respective areas of this report detailed below. 
 

2. Most Common Findings 
 
2.1. All schools visited during the year had Governing Bodies collectively 

responsible for the overall direction and strategic management. 
However, the effectiveness of school governance could be improved by 
ensuring that inconsistencies between the Code of Financial Practice 
and the Scheme of Delegation are addressed and that the amended 
document, tailored to the requirements of the school, is formally 
approved by the Governing Body. The most common weakness in the 
document was the lack of delegated financial limits specified for the 
authorisation of financial transactions. Furthermore financial delegation 
documents have not been reviewed and approved on an annual basis.  
 

2.2. Governing Body and Committee meeting minutes were not always 
checked and signed by the respective Chair to ensure they provide an 
accurate account of decisions made, including the approval of key 
policies.  
 

2.3. Schools have not maintained an up to date register of business 
interests for all Governors on the Governing Body and/or all staff with 
financial management responsibilities.  
 

2.4. Terms of references have not been drawn up for all sub-committees. 
Where they have been drawn up, they have not been reviewed 
annually and approved by the Governing Body.  
 

2.5. Budget monitoring reports had not been presented to budget holders 
on a regular basis to help ensure the effective monitoring of individual 
budgets.  

 

2.6. A common weakness identified was the lack of evidence to show that 
the Schools’ Development Plans had been formally approved by the full 
Governing Body.  

 

2.7. In a number of instances schools did not retain an up-to-date bank 
mandate for its current, fund and special interest bearing bank 
accounts.  
 

2.8. Formal tendering processes were not undertaken as required in a 
number of cases and there was no evidence of best value being 
achieved for some high value purchases.  
 

2.9. Official orders were not raised by all schools as required to support 
purchases and there was a lack of documentary evidence that the 
goods and services received are checked for accuracy and that 
delivery documentation was appropriately annotated. 

Page 110



3 
 

 
2.10. In a number of instances, the financial limit for petty cash payments, as 

stipulated by the School’s Financial Procedures Manual, was 
exceeded.  

2.11. Governors have not always approved a Charging Policy. Where a 
policy was in place, it was not always up to date.   
 

2.12. The Governing Body has not always approved a Pay Policy and where 
these were in place they were not always up to date. Adequate 
segregation of duties was not always in place between processing 
personnel and approving payroll transactions. Appropriate 
documentation is not always held on file. 
 

2.13. Payroll reconciliations were not checked and signed off by an 
independent senior member of staff to evidence segregation of duties.  
 

2.14. Documentary evidence for the costing of school trips and journeys was 
often not maintained and details of school journeys had not been 
presented to the Governing Body prior to the journey.  
 

2.15. The Governing Body had not always approved objectives/mission 
statement for voluntary funds. School fund accounts were not always 
independently audited and presented to the Governing Body with a 
statement of income and expenditure.  
 

2.16. Annual inventory checks are not performed consistently across all 
schools, and where performed, the results of these inventory checks 
are not always reported to the Governing Body.  Portable and valuable 
assets were not always visibly and indelibly security marked by the 
school.  Furthermore equipment loan registers did not generally specify 
employees’ liability/responsibility for equipment. Disposals of assets 
were not appropriately authorised by an individual within their 
delegated limits. 
 

 
3. Key Findings by Audit Area 
 
3.1. Operation of Governance Processes 
 
3.1.1 All schools had in place a Scheme of Delegation and Finance 

Procedures policy. However, in a number of cases these were not up to 
date with evidence of regular review by the Governing Body. 
Inconsistencies in delegations were identified.  
 

3.1.2 The full Governing Body and sub-committee meetings are generally 
held termly and the minutes have usually been prepared. In a number 
of instances, there was no evidence of meeting minutes being 
presented to and approved by the appropriate Chair. 

 

Page 111



4 
 

3.1.3 Where the Governing Body has set up sub-committees, terms of 
reference had not been approved and reviewed annually in a number 
of instances. 
 

3.1.4 In most schools, the Register of Business Interest was not up-to-date 
with missing declarations for Governors on the Governing Body and 
staff with financial management responsibilities. However, the 
opportunity to declare interests is a standing item on most agendas of 
the Governing Body meetings.  

 
3.2.  Financial Planning, Budget Setting, Monitoring and Forecasting 

 
3.2.1 Schools have generally produced comprehensive School Development 

Plans which include three year targets. The plan is produced and 
reviewed each financial year to help ensure resource implications are 
considered during the budget setting process.  Governors are regularly 
updated on the progress against targets within the plan. However, in 
several instances approval of the plan was not evidenced adequately in 
minutes of meetings.  

 
3.2.2 For all schools the Chair of Governors and the full Governing Body had 

approved the budget plans in a timely manner. Income is profiled as 
part of budget planning and the results of budget monitoring are 
reported to the Finance sub-committee. Budget monitoring is usually 
undertaken either monthly or as a minimum on a quarterly basis.   
However in a number of instances, budget monitoring reports had not 
been presented to budget holders in a timely manner.     

 
3.2.3 Material variances were investigated and corrective action identified. 

Virements are generally presented to the appropriate committee.  
 
3.3. Control and Monitoring over School Bank Accounts 
 
3.3.1 Bank accounts were not always administered in accordance with the 

requirements of the approved bank account mandates as bank 
mandates have been found to be out of date in a number of cases.  In 
several instances, copies of the bank mandate were not retained by the 
school.  
 

3.3.2 Adequate arrangements have been established to support separation 
of duties over cheque production. Safe security and printed cheque 
security procedures were adequate. 
 

3.3.3 Schools in most instances have ensured that surplus funds are 
identified and adequate arrangements made to maximise returns on 
the account balances. In a small number of cases, schools do not 
make use of a high interest bank facility.  
 

 
 

Page 112



5 
 

3.3.4 Bank reconciliations were generally complete and performed in a timely 
manner, and these reconciliations were mostly independently checked 
to confirm completeness and accuracy. In some instances bank 
reconciliations had not been signed by both the individual performing 
the reconciliation and the individual carrying out its independent review. 
 

3.3.5 Most schools had banked income received at the school in a timely 
manner and as a result ensured excessive amounts of cash were not 
held on site. However in some instances schools were found to be 
holding amounts of cash in excess of the maximum insured amount.  

 
3.4. Procurement (including Large Single Purchases, Tendering &    

VFM) 
 
3.4.1. Schools in general have procedures for obtaining competitive prices 

and quotations for the purchase of goods and services.  Pre-defined 
limits are identified, above which prior approval from the Governing 
Body is required.  In practice however, formal tendering processes 
were not undertaken as required in some cases. There was no 
evidence of best value being achieved for some high value purchases.   

 
3.4.2 Official orders were not raised in all instances to support purchases 

therefore it was unclear whether the availability of budget was checked 
prior to purchasing or that purchases were authorised by appropriate 
individuals in accordance with their delegated limits.  There was a lack 
of documentary evidence in some instances that the goods received 
are checked for accuracy and that delivery documentation was 
appropriately annotated.  
 

3.4.3 Invoices sampled were arithmetically correct and in most cases had 
been certified as approved for payment by an officer within their 
delegated limits.  Segregation of duties for procurement was generally 
evidenced. 
 

3.4.4 Robust procedures were found to be in place for procurements using 
debit cards. 

 
3.4.5 Incidents were identified where schools have not complied with the 

Council’s guidance when entering into lease agreements.  The majority 
of the leases have been in place for a number of years and the Head 
Teachers have confirmed that guidance will be sought in future.  

 
3.5.  Accounting of Income and Expenditure 
 
3.5.1 Direct credits and debits were posted in a timely manner and journal 

entries on the financial accounting system appeared reasonable. 
Although there were a limited amount of journal postings at the year 
end, management were aware of the processes required.  
 

Page 113



6 
 

3.5.2 There were several instances where a weakness in the petty cash 
process was identified. These related to vouchers not being completed 
fully or authorisation of payments which exceed limits laid out in the 
school’s Financial Code of Practice.  

 
3.6.  Charging Policy and Income Collection and Banking 
 
3.6.1 Governors have not always approved a documented Charging Policy. 

Where one was in place, the policy was not always being kept up to 
date.   

 
3.6.2 Official receipts were used where appropriate and where receipts were 

not issued compensatory records were generally adequate and 
reliable.  

 
3.6.3 Most schools had a documented Lettings Policy in place where 

appropriate which included the terms and conditions for hiring the 
premises. Agreements were signed between the school and persons / 
groups hiring the use of the premises and lettings were authorised by 
the Head Teacher. Charges were made in compliance with an 
approved rate. 

 
3.6.4 In the majority of cases income was regularly and fully banked and 

amounts were periodically reconciled to the cash-book within the 
school’s financial accounting system. 

 
3.6.5 Records were not always maintained in relation to transfer of income 

between staff. There was an inadequate trail to confirm the person from 
whom income had been received, the date of receipt, the amount 
received and the date the income was banked. 

 
3.7. Personnel and Payroll Management 
 
3.7.1 Where the Governing Body has approved a Pay Policy, these were in 

several of the schools not kept up-to-date.  In some instances, where 
they were reviewed annually by a delegated committee, they were not 
consequently approved by the Governing Body.  
 

3.7.2 Evidence of pre-recruitment checks is not always maintained, such as 
identity checks, references, medical checks, and qualifications checks. 
Letters of resignation / termination were not always held on file in 
respect of leavers.  
 

3.7.3 We noted that in a number of instances starter, leaver and overtime 
forms had been processed electronically by the same individual who 
receives and monitors payroll reports, resulting in a lack of segregation 
of duties.  
 
 
 

Page 114



7 
 

3.7.4 Payroll reconciliations are undertaken in all schools, however in some 
there was no evidence of a senior member of staff having performed an 
independent review of the reconciliation. There was lack of evidence in 
several schools to demonstrate the Governing Body complying with the 
Teachers Pay and Conditions Document 2000, by annually approving 
the remuneration of the Head Teacher, Deputy Head Teacher and 
Assistant Head Teacher(s) following their performance management 
reviews. 
 

3.8.  School Meals 
 
3.8.1 All schools had adequate procedures in place to ensure free school 

meals were only administered to pupils who are entitled to them. 
Schools retain proof of entitlement for all appropriate pupils or have set 
procedures for obtaining eligibility confirmation from the Local Authority 
in a timely manner. Income due from pupils for school meals is 
recorded and accounted for and records identify arrears and credits. 

 
3.9.  Voluntary Fund and School Journey 
 
3.9.1 The Governing Body has not always approved the Objectives of the 

Voluntary Fund account. The accounts for the school fund were not 
independently audited for some schools by a person who is not 
involved in the day to day administration of the account.  

 
3.9.3 Schools did not always maintain evidence of how school journeys were 

costed and certified summary accounts for each school journey were 
not produced. 

 
3.9.4 The Governors have approved a documented Grants Policy in the 

majority of cases and these usually defined the criteria under which 
subsidies may be approved. 

 
3.10.  Asset Controls and Security of Assets 
 
3.10.1 This area remains an area of weakness and represents one of the most 

consistent findings in audit reports. Inventory records are not always 
maintained up to date with new assets being added and disposed 
assets recorded in a timely manner.  

 
3.10.2 Inventory checks are not always performed and the results of the 

inventory check are not always reported to the Governing Body. An 
adequate equipment loan register is not maintained for a number of 
schools and signed loan agreements did not highlight the employee’s 
liability/responsibility for equipment. 

 
 
 
 

Page 115



8 
 

3.11. Security of the IT Infrastructure, Disaster Recovery, Data 
Protection 

 
3.11.1 All schools had evidence of registration under the Data Protection Act.  

However some schools did not have procedures for dealing with 
requests made under the Freedom of Information Act.  Anti-virus 
software had been installed on financial and administration systems 
and most schools had adequate computer back up procedures.   

 
3.11.2 Improvements have been made in enforcing periodical password 

changes for administrative user accounts.  
 
3.12.  Risk Management and Insurance 
 
3.12.1 The Governing Body's approach to risk management in the 

development of the School Improvement Plan (where in place), School 
Journey, and Health and Safety were considered appropriate. School's 
generally have adequate arrangements for insurance in place.  

 
4 Conclusions 
 
4.1. In general, schools met the minimum standard of financial control and 

management. However, improvements were required in the areas of 
operation of governance processes; financial planning; control and 
monitoring of bank accounts, accounting for income and expenditure; 
procurement; personnel and payroll management; voluntary fund; 
school journey; asset control including security of assets and data 
protection.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 116



 

 
REPORT TO: 

 
Audit Committee 
 

DATE 

 

14th January 2013 

CLASSIFICATION 

 
Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF: 

 

Corporate Director, Resources  
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Head of Risk Management and Audit 
 

 

Annual Governance Statement for the 
2011/12 Accounts Update 
 

Ward(s) Affected:  
 
N/A 
 

 

1. Summary 

1.1 This report updates the Audit Committee of the progress made in dealing with the 
significant issue identified within the annual governance statement presented to 
the Audit Committee in September 2012. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to note the action in dealing with the issues raised 
on the annual governance statement in September 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 
 
 

N/A  Minesh Jani, 0207 364 0738 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.5

Page 117



 
3. Background 
3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and its subsequent amendment 

by regulation 4(2) in 2006 require the Council to conduct a review, at least 
annually of the effectiveness of its governance arrangements and to 
publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with the annual financial 
statements. The Statement of Recommended Practice requires the AGS to 
be approved by the committee approving the accounts, which at Tower 
Hamlets is the Audit Committee.  

 
3.2 The table appended to this report outlines the governance issue raised on 

the AGS, the agreed action and progress to date. 
 
4. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
4.1 The comments of the Chief Financial Officer are contained within the report 

of which he is the author. 
 
5. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
5.1 The Council is required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 to 

ensure adequate and effective financial management and a sound system 
of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s 
functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.  
This must be reviewed at least once each year and a report provided to 
committee, which must approve a statement on internal control.  It is 
consistent with the maintenance of a sound system of internal control, that 
the Council should produce an Annual Governance Statement and monitor 
performance against that. 
 

5.2 The Council’s Constitution provides that it is the function of the audit   
committee to be satisfied that the annual governance statement properly 
reflects the risk environment and any actions required to improve it.  It is 
entirely proper that the audit committee should receive reports on progress 
against issues identified in the statement. 

 
6. One Tower Hamlets Considerations 
6.1 This progress update on significant issues from the Annual Governance 

Statement on 2011/12 Financial Year should allow the Audit Committee to 
focus on management action taken to date to improve risk management 
and control in order to provide strong leadership and inclusive services. 

 
7. Anti-Poverty Considerations 
7.1 There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report. 
 
8. Risk Management Implications  
8.1. The progress update on significant governance issues should provide 

assurance to members that key risks associated with progressing these 
issues are being addressed and managed.  

 
9. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE) 
9.1 There are no specific SAGE implications. 

Page 118



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 U

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

Is
s

u
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 I

s
s
u

e
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

 a
n

d
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
s
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 M

a
d

e
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
C

M
T

 L
e
a
d

  

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

q
u
e
ri
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

c
re

d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 c

u
t-

o
ff

 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

  

Is
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 f
in

a
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 

d
e
b
to

r 
a
n
d
 c

re
d
it
o
r 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
. 
R

e
tu

rn
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

t 
3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 f

o
r 

c
lo

s
e
d
o
w

n
 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 t

o
 A

g
re

s
s
o
. 
 I
f 
a
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
, 
th

e
n
 w

ri
te

-o
ff

 t
o
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

A
t 

c
lo

s
e
d

o
w

n
 -

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

o
 

ju
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
ll 

d
e
b
to

rs
 &

 c
re

d
it
o
rs

 a
t 

3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 d
o
u
b
ts

 o
n
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 

o
f 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
. 

 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
–
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

P
a
y
a
b
le

 S
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 p
ro

m
p
t 
to

 

a
s
s
is

t 
u
s
e
rs

 w
h
e
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 g

o
o
d
s
/s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
p
re

-r
e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g

 i
s
 m

in
im

is
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
p
re

-

re
c
e
ip

ti
n
g

. 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

  

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

COMMITTEE: 
 

Audit Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

14 January 2013 

CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Acting Chief Finance Officer 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Alan Finch, Service Head, Finance, Risk & 
Accountability 
 

Oladapo Shonola, Chief Financial Strategy 
Officer 

TITLE: 

Treasury Management Activity for 
Period Ending 30 November 2012 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report advises the Committee of treasury management activity for the current financial 
year up to 30 November 2012 as required by the Local Government Act 2003.  

1.2 The report details the current credit criteria adopted by the Corporate Director - Resources, 
the investment strategy for the current financial year and the projected investment returns. 
The current average return on investment stands at 1.24%, and is on target to achieve 
budgeted cash return on assets of £2.395m. 

 
 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

2.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of the treasury management activity 
report for period ending 30 November 2012. 

 

 

3 REASONS FOR DECISIONS 

3.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and 
Accounting) Regulations 2003 require that regular reports be submitted to 
Council/Committee detailing the council’s treasury management activities. 

3.2 The regular reporting of treasury management activities should assist in ensuring that 
Members are able to scrutinise officer decisions and monitor progress on implementation of 
investment strategy as approved by Full Council. 

 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The Council is bound by legislation to have regard to the Treasury Management (TM) 
Code. The Code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of the Council (Audit 
Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on treasury management activities. 

Lead Member Cllr Alibor Choudhury –  Resources 

Community Plan Theme All 

Strategic Priority One Tower Hamlets 

Agenda Item 5.6

Page 121



 2 

4.2 If the Council were to deviate from those requirements, there would need to be some good 
reason for doing so.  It is not considered that there is any such reason, having regard to the 
need to ensure that Members are kept informed about treasury management activities and 
to ensure that these activities are in line with the investment strategy approved by the 
Council. 

 

5 BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 

require local authorities to have regard to the Treasury Management Code. The Treasury 
Management code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of the Council (Audit 
Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on treasury management activities 
and risks. 

 
5.2 These reports are in addition to the mid-year and annual treasury management activity 

reports that should be presented to Council midway through the financial year and at year 
end respectively. 

 
5.3 This report details the current credit criteria/risk level adopted by the Service Head, 

Financial Services, Risk and Accountability, the investment strategy for the current financial 
year and the projected investment returns. 

 
 

6.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2012/13 

 
6.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy was approved on 22 February 2012 by Full 

Council. The Strategy comprehensively outlines how the treasury function is to operate 
over the financial year 2012-13 and it covered the following: 

 
• Treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
• Prudential and Treasury Indicator; 
• The current treasury position; 
• Prospects for interest rates; 
• The borrowing strategy (including policy on borrowing in advance of need); 
• Debt Rescheduling; 
• The Investment Strategy; 
• Credit Worthiness Policy’ 
• Policy on use of external service providers; and 
• The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Strategy 

 

7.   TREASURY ACTIVITY FOR PERIOD 1 April to 30 November 2012 

 7.1 This section of the report gives an update on the market and sets out: 

• The current credit criteria being operated by the Council. 

• The treasury investment strategy for the current financial year and the progress in 
implementing this. 

• The transactions undertaken in the period and the investment portfolio outstanding as at 
30 November 2012. 

 

Page 122



 3 

8 MARKET UPDATE 

8.1 The Eurozone debt crisis has continued to impact world economy and has depressed 
growth in most countries. This has however, been abated by the European Central Bank’s 
pledge to buy unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask for a bailout. Market 
sentiment has improved considerably since this action by the ECB and the recent 
Eurozone commitment to support Greece and keep the Eurozone intact. Current reports on 
the US have shown a positive and improving economy but this is hampered by the 
government’s discussions on ways to avert the ‘fiscal cliff’ of a possible recession if current 
tax concessions are allowed to lapse by the year end. The pace of economic growth in the 
US remains weak despite the Federal Reserve’s liberal amounts of quantitative easing and 
ultra-low interest rates. Unemployment levels have been slowly reducing but against a fall 
in the number of those available for work. However, the housing market seems to have 
reached the bottom and house prices are picking up. Hopes for a broad recovery have now 
focused on the emerging markets.   

8.2 The economic recovery in the UK since 2008 has been the worst and slowest recovery in 
recent history. Quarter 2 of 2012 was the third quarter of contraction in the economy 
although it returned to positive growth in the third quarter.  

8.3 The implications of this challenging and uncertain outlook on treasury management is 
higher counterparty risk and relatively low investment returns, although borrowing interest 
rates continue to be attractive and may remain relatively low for some time. However, there 
is an existing threat by one of the major ratings agencies to downgrade the UK’s credit 
rating and this may have a negative impact on the UK’s borrowing costs. 

9 CREDIT CRITERIA 

9.1 The following credit criteria for investment counterparties were established by the Council 
in February 2012 as part of the budget setting exercise.  The Council will continue to invest 
within the UK and its Government regardless of the country’s sovereign rating.  Explanation 
of credit ratings criteria is attached at Appendix 1. 

Institution Minimum High 
Credit Criteria 

Use Limit 

Debt Management Office (DMO) Deposit Facility Not applicable In-house £100m* 

Term deposits – Other Local Authorities  Not applicable In-house £10m** 

Term deposits – banks and building societies  Short-term F1+,   

Long-term AA- 

Sovereign rating 
AAA 

In-house  £30m 

Institutions with Government guarantee on ALL 
deposits by high credit rated (sovereign rating) 
countries. 

Sovereign rating In-house  £30m 

UK Government Gilts Long Term AAA In-house  £20m 

Institutions with UK Government support. Sovereign rating In-house  £30m 

Institutions that are owned/part owned by the UK 
Government Sovereign rating In-house 

Lesser of 
£70m or 40% 
of portfolio 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as 
Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) 

 

Money Market Funds AAA rated In-house £15m 

     *Although limit has been set at £100m for the DMO, in reality there is no restriction on placement with the UK Government 

       ** The group limit for local authorities has been set at £100m. 

Page 123



 4 

 

10 INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

10.1 Sector provides cash management services to the Council, but the Council retains control 
of the credit criteria and the investments, so that Sector’s role is purely advisory. 

10.2 In addition to providing cash management services, Sector also provides treasury 
consultancy/advisory service to the Council. 

10.3 Sector’s current interest rate projections are that base rate will remain static at 0.50% with 
limited changes in Bank Base Rate before 2015.  Although, the outlook for interest rate is 
below expectation, budgeted return on investment is expected to be achieved this financial 
year. 

10.4 The Council’s bankers, the Co-operative Bank plc are used as depositors of last resort for 
investment of additional funds received after the treasury transactions have been 
completed and the money markets have closed. 

10.5 The current investment portfolio within the constraints of the Councils credit criteria and 
liquidity requirement together with the maturity profile of the portfolio is as set out below.   

 

Investment Portfolio at 30 November 2012 

 

 

Projection Actual Deal 
Term Counterparty Maturity Amount £M Rate 

Overnight Deutsche Managed 
Sterling 

MMF 15.000 0.37% 

Overnight SWIP Global Liquidity 
Sterling 

MMF 15.000 0.34% 

Overnight Goldman Sachs MMF 15.000 0.43% 

Overnight Ignis Liquidity Funds MMF 15.000 0.48% 

Overnight Insight MMF 15.000 0.42% 

Overnight DMO Overnight 28.600 0.25% 

          

  SUB TOTAL   103.600   

          

< I Month Leeds City Council 10-Dec-12 3.000 0.30% 

  Glasgow City Council 17-Dec-12 4.000 0.30% 

  OCBC 18-Dec-12 30.000 0.35% 

          

1 - 3 Months Glasgow City Council 09-Jan-13 5.000 0.30% 

  Salford City Council 09-Jan-13 1.200 0.30% 

  Royal Bank of Scotland 11-Jan-13 5.000 0.15% 

  Glasgow City Council 16-Jan-13 1.000 0.30% 

  Bank of Scotland 13-Feb-13 5.000 3.10% 

  Bank of Scotland 13-Feb-13 5.000 3.10% 

          

3 - 6 Months Bank of Scotland 11-Apr-13 10.000 3.00% 

  Bank of Scotland 11-Apr-13 10.000 3.00% 

  Royal Bank of Scotland 11-Apr-13 10.000 0.54% 

          

6 - 9 Months Royal Bank of Scotland 12-Jun-13 5.000 1.69% 

  Bank of Scotland 04-Jul-13 10.000 3.00% 

          

9 - 12 Months Royal Bank of Scotland 11-Oct-13 5.000 2.25% 

  Bank of Scotland 29-Oct-13 5.000 2.00% 

          

Over 12 Months Royal Bank of Scotland 12-Dec-13 5.000 2.00% 

  Royal Bank of Scotland 03-Jan-14 10.000 4.00% 

  Royal Bank of Scotland 27-Jan-15 5.000 3.35% 

          

  SUB TOTAL   134.200   

          

 TOTAL   237.800   

Page 124



 5 

Maturity of Investment Portfolio 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Overnight Under I

Month

1- 3

Months

3 - 6

Months

6 - 9

Months

9 - 12

Months

Over 12

Months

£
 m

il
li

o
n

s

Maturity Profile

 

 

 

10.6 The amount in overnight instruments appears high because of money market fund deposits 
which although are technically classed as overnight investments. In reality, these are used 
as longer term investment vehicles. Of the £103.6m in overnight instruments, £75m is held 
with money market funds. This allows the Council to maintain liquidity whilst still able to 
secure reasonable return on its assets. 

10.7 The Council’s exposure to any one counterparty/Group is represented by the chart below 
including exposure as a percentage of total assets invested as at 30 November 2012. 

 

Counterparty Exposure 

 

 

 

Page 125



 6 

11 INVESTMENT RETURNS 

11.1 Investment returns since inception of the cash management arrangement with Sector has 
been consistently above the portfolio benchmark and the 7 day London Interbank Bid Rate 
(LIBID). Performance against LIBID has been strong so far but in recent months (since 
September 2012), the portfolio has marginally been underperforming against the portfolio 
benchmark, with year to date return on investment at 1.24%. 

11.2 Though the Strategy approved at the 22 February 2012 Council allowed for more flexibility, 
the challenge of a counterparty list that continues to contract in the face of credit 
worthiness downgrades by the ratings agencies, combined with falling rates of return on 
the Money Market Funds (MMFs) and higher rate longer term investments which have now 
matured and being replaced with lower rate investments have resulted in a decline in the 
rate of return of the fund.  The latest approved counterparty list is attached at Appendix 2. 

11.3 Notwithstanding these constraints, the portfolio has outperformed the 7 day LIBID, which 
currently stands at an average of 0.40% year to date.  

11.4 The budgeted investment return for 2012/13 is £2.395m. It is expected that this target will 
be achieved.  

11.5 The table below details performance of investments. The table shows that performance has 
consistently outperformed LIBID. 

 

 
Period LBTH 

Performance 
7 Day LIBID (Under)/Over 

Performance 

Full Year 2011/12 1.52% 0.48% 1.04% 

June 2012 1.39% 0.44% 0.95% 

July 2012 1.35% 0.42% 0.93% 

August 2012 1.26% 0.40% 0.86% 

September 2012 1.21% 0.39% 0.82% 

October 2012 1.12% 0.37% 0.75% 

November 2012 1.11% 0.36% 0.75% 

Average YTD - 
2012/13 

1.24% 0.40% 0.84% 

 

11.6 Following a review of the current strategy and the current market environment, a revised 
Treasury Management Policy Statement report was received by Full Council on 28 
November 2012 requesting approval of an increase in the limits of deposits with wholly or 
partly owned government banks whilst maintaining a risk profile similar to the existing 
portfolio. These changes do not affect the period covered by this report. 

 
 
12. DEBT PORTFOLIO 
 
12.1 There has been no new borrowing this financial year to date. Current debt portfolio stands 

at £91m.  

 
 
 
 

Page 126



 7 

13. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
13.1. The comments of the Acting chief Finance Officer have been incorporated into the report. 
 

 
 
14. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
 

14.1  Treasury management activities cover the management of the Council’s investments and 
cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions, the effective control 
of risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.  The Local Government Act 2003 provides a framework for the capital 
finance of local authorities.  It provides a power to borrow and imposes a duty on local 
authorities to determine an affordable borrowing limit.  It provides a power to invest.  
Fundamental to the operation of the scheme is an understanding that authorities will have 
regard to proper accounting practices recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in carrying out capital finance functions. 

14.2    The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 
require the Council to have regard to the CIPFA publication “Treasury Management in the 
Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes” (“the Treasury 
Management Code”) in carrying out capital finance functions under the Local Government 
Act 2003.  If after having regard to the Treasury Management Code the Council wished not 
to follow it, there would need to be some good reason for such deviation. 

14.3   The Treasury Management Code requires as a minimum that there be a practice of regular 
reporting on treasury management activities and risks to the responsible committee and 
that these should be scrutinised by that committee.  Under the Council’s Constitution, the 
audit committee has the functions of monitoring the Council’s risk management 
arrangements and making arrangements for the proper administration of the Council’s 
affairs. 

 

15. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 

15.1 Interest on the Council’s cash flow has historically contributed significantly towards the 
budget.  

 
 

16. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 
16.1 There are no Sustainable Actions for A Greener Environment implications. 
 
 

17. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

17.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. To minimise risk the investment 
strategy has restricted exposure of council cash balances to UK backed banks or 
institutions with the highest short term rating or strong long term rating. 

 
 

Page 127



 8 

18. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

18.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report. 

 

19.  EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 

19.1 Monitoring and reporting of treasury management activities ensures the Council optimises 
the use of its monetary resources within the constraints placed on the Council by statute, 
appropriate management of risk and operational requirements. 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 

Brief description of "background papers" 
  

Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

November 2012 Investment Portfolio Analysis Report  Oladapo Shonola   Ext.  4733 
Mulberry Place, 4

th
 Floor. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128



 9 

 

 

 Appendix 1: Definition of Credit Ratings  
 
 

Support Ratings 
 

Rating  

1 A bank for which there is an extremely high probability of external 
support. The potential provider of support is very highly rated in its 
own right and has a very high propensity to support the bank in 
question. This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-
term rating floor of 'A-'. 

2 A bank for which there is a high probability of external support.  
The potential provider of support is highly rated in its own right and 
has a high propensity to provide support to the bank in question. 
This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-term rating 
floor of 'BBB-'. 

3 A bank for which there is a moderate probability of support 
because of uncertainties about the ability or propensity of the 
potential provider of support to do so. This probability of support 
indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 'BB-'. 
 

4 A bank for which there is a limited probability of support because of 
significant uncertainties about the ability or propensity of any 
possible provider of support to do so. This probability of support 
indicates a minimum Long-term rating floor of 'B'. 
 

5 A bank for which external support, although possible, cannot be 
relied upon. This may be due to a lack of propensity to provide 
support or to very weak financial ability to do so. This probability of 
support indicates a Long-term rating floor no higher than 'B-' and in 
many cases no floor at all. 

 
 

Short-term Ratings 
 
 Rating  

F1 Highest short-term credit quality. Indicates the strongest 
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments; may have an 
added "+" to denote any exceptionally strong credit feature. 

F2 Good short-term credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely 
payment of financial commitments, but the margin of safety is not 
as great as in the case of the higher ratings. 

F3 Fair short-term credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is adequate; however, near-term adverse 
changes could result in a reduction to non-investment grade. 

Page 129



 10 

 
Long-term Rating Scales 

 

Rating Current Definition  

AAA Highest credit quality. 'AAA' ratings denote the lowest 
expectation of credit risk. They are assigned only in case of 
exceptionally strong capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely 
affected by foreseeable events. 

AA Very high credit quality. 'AA' ratings denote a very low 
expectation of credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for 
timely payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not 
significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events. 

A High credit quality. 'A' ratings denote a low expectation of credit 
risk. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is 
considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more 
vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic conditions 
than is the case for higher ratings. 

BBB Good credit quality. 'BBB' ratings indicate that there is currently a 
low expectation of credit risk. The capacity for timely payment of 
financial commitments is considered adequate, but adverse 
changes in circumstances and in economic conditions are more 
likely to impair this capacity. This is the lowest investment-grade 
category 

 
Individual Ratings 
 

Rating  

A A very strong bank. Characteristics may include outstanding 
profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

B A strong bank. There are no major concerns regarding the bank. 
Characteristics may include strong profitability and balance sheet 
integrity, franchise, management, operating environment or 
prospects 

C An adequate bank, which, however, possesses one or more 
troublesome aspects. There may be some concerns regarding its 
profitability and balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. 

D A bank, which has weaknesses of internal and/or external origin. 
There are concerns regarding its profitability, substance and 
resilience, balance sheet integrity, franchise, management, 
operating environment or prospects. Banks in emerging markets 
are necessarily faced with a greater number of potential 
deficiencies of external origin. 

E A bank with very serious problems, which either requires or is likely 
to require external support. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 130



 11 

Country/Financial Institution

Long 

Term 

Status

Long 

Term

Short 

Term
Viability Support

Long 

Term 

Status

Long 

Term

Short 

Term
FSR

Long 

Term 

Status

Long 

Term

Short 

Term

Australia SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten SB AAA F1+ - 1 NO Aaa P-1 A NW AAA A-1+

Bank of Montreal SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 RD Aa2 P-1 B- SB A+ A-1

Bank of New York Mellon (International) Ltd SB AA- F1+ - 1 - - - - - - -

Bank of New York Mellon, The SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa1 P-1 B NO AA- A-1+

Bank of Nova Scotia SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 RD Aa1 P-1 B NO AA- A-1+

Bank of Scotland Plc SB A F1 - 1 NO A2 P-1 D+ NO A A-1

Canada SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 RD Aa2 P-1 B- SB A+ A-1

Collateralised LA Deposit* - AAA - - - - Aaa - - - AAA -

DBS Bank Ltd SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 NO Aa1 P-1 B SB AA- A-1+

Debt Management Office - AAA - - - - Aaa - - - AAA -

Denmark SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

Finland SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - NO AAA -

France NO AAA - - - NO Aa1 - - NO AA+ -

Germany SB AAA - - - NO Aaa - - SB AAA -

Landwirtschaftliche Rentenbank SB AAA F1+ - 1 NO Aaa P-1 - SB AAA A-1+

Lloyds Banking Group plc SB A F1 bbb 1 NO A3 - - NO A- A-2

Luxembourg SB AAA - - - NO Aaa - - NO AAA -

National Westminster Bank Plc SB A F1 - 1 NO A3 P-2 D+ SB A A-1

Netherlands SB AAA - - - NO Aaa - - NO AAA -

Nordea Bank AB SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa3 P-1 C NO AA- A-1+

Nordea Bank Finland plc ~ SB AA- F1+ - 1 SB Aa3 P-1 C NO AA- A-1+

Norway SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

Oversea Chinese Banking Corporation Ltd SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa1 P-1 B SB AA- A-1+

Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc SB A F1 bbb 1 NO Baa1 P-2 - SB A- A-2

Singapore SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

Standard Chartered Bank NO AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB A1 P-1 B- SB AA- A-1+

Supranationals - AAA - - - - Aaa - - - AAA -

Svenska Handelsbanken AB SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa3 P-1 C NO AA- A-1+

Sweden SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

Switzerland SB AAA - - - SB Aaa - - SB AAA -

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation LtdNO AA F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa2 P-1 B SB AA- A-1+

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc SB A F1 bbb 1 NO A3 P-2 D+ SB A A-1

Toronto Dominion Bank SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 RD Aaa P-1 B+ NO AA- A-1+

U.K NO AAA - - - NO Aaa - - SB AAA -

U.S.A NO AAA - - - NO Aaa - - NO AA+ -

UK Gilts - AAA - - - - Aaa - - - AAA -

United Overseas Bank Ltd SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa1 P-1 B SB AA- A-1+

Wells Fargo Bank NA SB AA- F1+ aa- 1 SB Aa3 P-1 C+ NO AA- A-1+

Credit Ratings

Fitch Ratings Moody's  Ratings S&P Ratings

Appendix 2

 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	4.1 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report LBTH Audit 2011/12
	5.1 Quarterly Internal Audit Assurance Report
	5.1a Quarterly Assurance Appxs

	5.2 Revised Internal Audit Plan for 2012
	5.2a Revised Audit Plan Appxs

	5.3 Annual Risk Management Report
	5.3a Risk management Annual Report Appxs

	5.4 Annual Internal Audit Report for Schools 2011/12
	5.5 Annual Governance Statement for 2011/12 - Update
	5.5a AGS update appx

	5.6 2011/12 Treasury Management Report to 30 November 2012.

